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SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
JANUARY 26, 2018 - 9:00 AM
METRO ADMIN OFFICES
110 VERNON STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA

MISSION STATEMENT: “To provide a public transportation service that enhances personal
mobility and creates a sustainable transportation option in Santa Cruz County through a cost-
effective, reliable, accessible, safe, clean and courteous transit service.”

The Board Meeting Agenda Packet can be found online at wvw.SCMTD.com and is available
for inspection at METRO’s Administrative offices at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California.

This document has been created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of certain 3rd
party and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat Xl Accessibility Full Check. If you
have any questions about the accessibility of this document, please email your inquiry to
accessibility@scmtd.com

BOARD ROSTER

Director Ed Bottorff City of Capitola

Director Cynthia Chase City of Santa Cruz
Director Jimmy Dutra City of Watsonville
Director Norm Hagen County of Santa Cruz
Director John Leopold County of Santa Cruz
Director Donna Lind City of Scotts Valley
Director Cynthia Mathews City of Santa Cruz
Director Bruce McPherson County of Santa Cruz
Director Oscar Rios City of Watsonville
Director Dan Rothwell County of Santa Cruz
Director Mike Rotkin County of Santa Cruz
Vacant Ex-Officio Director UC Santa Cruz

Ex-Officio Director Liber McKee Cabirillo College

Alex Clifford METRO CEO/General Manager
Julie Sherman METRO General Counsel

TITLE 6 - INTERPRETATION SERVICES / TITULO 6 - SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION
Spanish language interpretation and Spanish language copies of the agenda packet are
available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with the Executive
Assistant at 831-426-6080. Interpretacion en espafiol y traducciones en espafiol del paquete de
la agenda estan disponibles sobre una base como-necesaria. Por favor, hacer arreglos por
adelantado con Coordinador de Servicios Administrativos al numero 831-426-6080.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
The Board of Directors meets in an accessible facility. Any person who requires an
accommodation or an auxiliary aid or service to participate in the meeting, or to access the
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agenda and the agenda packet (including a Spanish language copy of the agenda packet),
should contact the Executive Assistant, at 831-426-6080 as soon as possible in advance of the
Board of Directors meeting. Hearing impaired individuals should call 711 for assistance in
contacting Santa Cruz METRO regarding special requirements to participate in the Board
meeting. For information regarding this agenda or interpretation services, please call Santa
Cruz METRO at 831-426-6080.

A W N P

10

SECTION I: OPEN SESSION
NOTE: THE BOARD CHAIR MAY TAKE ITEMS OUT OF ORDER

CALL TO ORDER
SWEAR IN NEW DIRECTORS
ROLL CALL

ANNOUNCEMENTS
4-1.  Spanish language interpretation will be available during "Oral Communications"
and for any other agenda item for which these services are needed.

4-2. Today's meeting is being broadcast by Community Television of Santa Cruz
County.

YOUTH ART POSTER CONTEST WINNERS
Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair and April Warnock, Paratransit Superintendent

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

This time is set aside for Directors and members of the general public to address any
item not on the Agenda which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. No
action or discussion shall be taken on any item presented except that any Director may
respond to statements made or questions asked, or may ask questions for clarification.
All matters of an administrative nature will be referred to staff. All matters relating to
Santa Cruz METRO will be noted in the minutes and may be scheduled for discussion at
a future meeting or referred to staff for clarification and report. Any Director may place
matters brought up under Communications to the Board of Directors on a future agenda.
In accordance with District Resolution 611-2-1, speakers appearing at a Board meeting
shall be limited to three minutes in his or her presentation. Any person addressing the
Board may submit written statements, petitions or other documents to complement his or
her presentation. When addressing the Board, the individual may, but is not required to,
provide his/her name and address in an audible tone for the record.

e R. Gubash, DRC Director, UCSC, Request to Board of Transportation: Relax dog
exclusion policy to allow emotional support animals (ESA) to ride transit buses
e J. Stephens: Online comment re Articulated Bus

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAC (if applicable)
LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS
ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS
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items.

CONSENT AGENDA
All items appearing on the Consent Agenda are recommended actions which are considered to
be routine and will be acted upon as one motion. All items removed will be considered later in
the agenda. The Board Chair will allow public input prior to the approval of the Consent Agenda

11-01 APPROVE: RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

1-02 ACCEPT AND FILE: PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL DETAIL|

FOR THE MONTHS OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER 2017

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

1-03 ACCEPT AND FILE: MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO BOARD OF|
IRECTORS MEETIN F NOVEMBER 17/, 201

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

|11-O4 ACCEPT AND FILE: MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO_FINANCE

UDGET AND AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JANUARY 5,

201

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METR

1-05 ACCEPT __AND FILE:l
E

RSONNEL/HR STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JANUARY 16, 2018

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

|11—06 ACCEPT AND FILE: MINUTES FOR 1

THE METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEEI

kMAC) MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 201

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

11-07 ACCEPT _AND_FILE:

QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT FOR 3%P

EUARTER OF FY18

Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager

|11-O8 ACCEPT AND FILE: OQUARTERLY ELECTRIC BUS PURCHASE REPORTI

OR[B"IQUARTER OF FY18

Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager

11-09 APPROVE: CONSIDE

RATION _OF AWA

RD OF CONT

RACT_TO ELERT &

ASSOCIATES OR CONSUL TAN SERVICES @) EVELOP
SPECIFICATIONS FOR METRO'S VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM NOT TO

EXCEED $ 20,300
Isaac Holly, IT Manager

|11-10 APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO CASEY

RINTING, INC. FOR PRINTING OF HEADWAYS BUS RIDER’S GUIDE NO

O EXCEED $235,783

Barrow Emerson, Planning and Development Manager

*CPS Case Study and Presentation are included with Agenda Item 20
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1-11 APPROVE: A SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE STATUS OF METRO’Sl
ISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRA

Angela Aitken, DBE Liaison Officer, Finance Manager

1-12

APPROVE: APPROVAL OF SEIU MECHANIC SERIES WAGE SURVEYI
RESULTS
Jolene Church, Human Resources Manager

11-13

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO EXECUTE

UAMENDMENT EXTENDING THE _CONTRACT WITH KIMBALL _MIDWEST
=o .

Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

1-14

APPROVE: ONSIDERATION WAR ONTRAC
ECHNOLOGY INTERNATIONAL, INC. FOR PURCHASE AND DELIVERY O

NE (1) TOW TRACTOR NOT TO EXCEED $53,41
Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AWARD_OF CONTRACT TO COASTAL

ANDSCAPING, INC. FOR LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE SERVICES NO
O EXCEED $ 186,04
Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

REGULAR AGENDA

PRESENTATION OF EMPLOYEE LONGEVITY AWARDS FOR JUAM
FLORES, MICHAEL MILLER AND PETE LEGORRETA!
Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair

|RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION, RETIREE: ARLAN COLWELL|
Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair

|STATE OF DOWNTOWN SANTA CRUZ PRESENTATIOM
Martin Bernal, City Manager for the City of Santa Cruz

ACCEPT AND FILE: THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTI

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 201
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

ACCEPT AND FILE: THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTI
AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2017
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

ACCEPTANCE _OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT|
AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager
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29
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21
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PPROVE THE PROPOSED REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THEI
ISTANT HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGE

Jolene Church, Human Resources Manager

APPROVE: REVISED JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE SAFETY, SECURITY|
AND RISK MANAGER
Jolene Church, Human Resources Manager

PPROVAL OF THE FINALl ICPS| HRl ICONSULTING| _IMANAGEMENT
LASSIFICATION STUDY AND COMPENSATION STUDY STRATEG
Jolene Church, Human Resources Manager

APPROVE: ESTABLISHMENT OF PASSENGER CODE OF CONDUCT AND

ERVICE _SUSPENSION/EXCLUSION _POLICIES FOR FIXED ROUT
ERVICES, TRANSIT FACILITIES AND PARACRU

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

rJNIFIED CORRIDOR INVESTMENT STUDY ORAL REPORT|
Barrow Emerson, Planning and Development Manager

PPROVE: REQUEST THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DIRECT STAFF Tq
INITIATE A FARE RESTRUCTURING ANALYSIS PROCES

Barrow Emerson, Planning and Development Manager

APPROVE: RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE REVISIONS TO THE
YLAWS OF THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT'S
OARD OF DIRECTORS

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

BOARD WORK SESSION
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager & Norm Hagen, Director

CCEPT_AND_FILE THE CEO’'S LETTER TO THE CALIFORNIA AIR]
RESOURCES BOARD (CARB

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

|CY18 STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE AGENDAI
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF NOMINATING DIRECTORS TO SERVE AS
OARD __OFFICERS, NOMINATING _DIRECTORS TO__CONFIRM
OSITIONS ON_VARIOUS BOARD COMMITTEES, NOMINATE
IRECTORS TO FILL_ONE (1) EXPIRED_POSITION ON THE_SANTA

%RUZ CIVIC_IMPRCVEMENT C%RP?RATIO\I (SCCIC) AND
RE S TERNATES TO THE

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
(SCCRTC)
Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair
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32

33

34

35

36

37

ONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT OF KEVIN ANDREWS AN
EAPPOINTMENT _OF VERONICA ELSEA TO _THE METRO_ADVISORY]

COMMITTEE (MAC) FOR FOUR-YEAR TERMS ENDING DECEMBER 31]
2021:; ONSIDERATION TO EXTEND THE NOMINATION PERIOD UNTI

ACANT SEAT IS _FILLED; AND, CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL O

EVISED MAC BYLAWS

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

ONSIDERATION OF REVISING THE SANTA CRUZ CIVIC IMPROVEMEN
RPORATION IC) BYLAWS T HANGE THE ANNUAL MEETIN

ATE AND APPOINTING ONE (1) DIRECTOR TO SERVE AS SCCIC BOARD

|MEMBER

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

ICEO ORAL REPORT

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

REVIEW OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING: FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2018 AT
9:00 AM, AT THE WATSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 275 MAIN
STREET, WATSONVILLE, CA

Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION
SECTION II: CLOSED SESSION

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(B)(1)

Agency Designated Representative: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager Julie
Title/Unrepresented Employee: Sherman, Contract General Counsel

SECTION IIl: RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEMS
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

ADJOURNMENT
Jimmy Dutra, Board Chair



COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Request to Board of Transportation: Relax dog exclusion policy to allow emotional support animals
(ESA) to ride transit buses.

Dear Santa Cruz Metro:

Please consider applying the Department of Transportation (DOT) and ADA guidance below for
students with Emotional Support Animals. Although the law does not require transportation
authorities like yourself to allow dogs who are not service animals, it does not prohibit authorities
from allowing ESA dogs on the bus. | request that the transit board establish new guidance for drivers
to extend privileges to partners of emotional support animals. The rationale is below.

Here is information from the DOT FAQ (https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/civil-
rights-adaffrequentiy-asked-questions):

Are transit providers required to allow a passenger to travel with a comfort animal?

No. Under Department of Transportation {DOT} Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations at 49
C.F.R. Section 37.167(d), transit entities are only required to allow service animals to accompany
individuals with disabilities in vehicles and faciiities. DOT ADA regulations at 49 C.F.R. Section 37.3 define
a service animal as an animal “individually trained to work or perform tasks for an individual with a
disability.” If an animal’s only function is to provide emotional support or comfort for the rider, that
animal would not fall under the reguiatory training-based definition of a service animal. Simply providing
comfort is something that animal does passively, by its nature or through the perception of the owner.
However, the ADA does not prohibit a transit agency from choosing to accommodate pets and comfort
animals, which would be a local decision.

Rationale:

Emotional support animals are allowed in housing under the Fair Housing Act and California FEHA. This
clearly does not apply to transit. However, this becomes an issue of equity that arises from situations -
whereby students require an ESA to manage living and functioning with psychologicat disabitities such as
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder and other anxiety related conditions. Students with limited financial
means should have the same access to public resources as students who have access to private
transportation. Current scenario: students from well-resourced backgrounds have access to'private
vehicles. Students, who are less resources, and often subject to more PTSD and anxiety, often have no
way to pay for a car, insurance, maintenance and high parking fees for having a car on campus. This
latter group really requires access exceptions to the transit resources.

These riders need access to take their dogs to the dog park, to take any animal to the veterinarian or
groomer. Without this access, students with emotional support animals will meet impassable barriers to
access, It is my recommendation that ESA partners be allowed to bring their animal to appointments
with the vet or to dog parks for exercise.

Please consider this reguest for your next board meeting.
Sincerely,
Fik sl []-14-]7

Rick Gubash
DRC Birector, UC Santa Cruz

7.1




COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Josh Stephens

Those new articulated buses are a godsend

Thank you for putting those into service this year. Looking forward to seeing these on more
routes hopefully down the line.

Saturday, June 13, 2018 - Sent from Web

7.2
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COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From: Trinidad. Deanna

To: Gina Pye

Cc: Cayla Hill

Subject: public comment for 1/26/18 BOD meeting
Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 12:18:29 PM
Importance: High

*****To be read at the 1/26/2018 BOD Meeting™*****

Dear Ms. Pye,

| obtained your contact information from Metro Planning Analyst, Cayla Hill. | previously
corresponded with Ms. Hill regarding the growing problem of Metro bus passengers’ discourteous
behavior. Last November, she informed me that the Board was considering creating some sort of
Passenger Code of Conduct. | expressed a desire to submit suggestions regarding this Code of
Conduct, but there was no way to do so. She informed me that | could attend the Board Meeting
in January when the Code of Conduct was going to be discussed, but like most people who
commute over the hill, | am not available on Friday mornings for these Metro Board meetings. The
compromise was that she gave me your email address, so | could email you a copy of my public
comment after a review of this proposed Code of Conduct, which became available yesterday. Itis
my understanding that this letter will be read during the meeting.

All'in all, I must say | am elated that Santa Cruz Metro has taken this step toward improvement.
Thank you!

Personally, | am only concerned with the HW17 Express buses because | have commuted on those
buses every weekday since 2013. The HW17 Express buses are different from your usual fixed-
route buses because a driver cannot simply pull over to address a passenger-related issue once the
driver has navigated onto HW17, a very dangerous road, even in perfect conditions. There is also
no security personnel at Scotts Valley (that | have ever seen), and | believe it would be extremely
difficult to obtain the assistance of a road supervisor anywhere between the Cavallaro Transit
Center in Scotts Valley and Diridon Station in San Jose.

This brings me to my first point. As | understand it, the new rules address passenger behavior
ranging from simple discourtesy to serious illegal conduct. My comments only concern simple
discourtesy.

My main concern with the proposed Code of Conduct (as outlined in pages 497 to 516 of the
Board’s Agenda) is that the summary states, bus operators “are trained in conflict avoidance and
conflict de-escalation,” and “operators will have no new duties under the proposed policies.”
There are a number of new bus rules that | am very happy to see, especially those concerning
blocking seats and disorderly conduct. | am worried, however, that bus operators are not going to
enforce these rules. Currently, there are audio announcements on the buses about being
“courteous” to other passengers by limiting cell phone use and not putting your bags on additional
seats, but | have never seen or heard a bus driver chastise a passenger for violating these rules. |
have asked people to move their luggage from seats and had them refuse my request. | have
requested that people wrap up very long (and loud) phone conversations. | have seen other

DISTRIBUTED AT THE 1/26/18 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 7 3
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COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

passengers do the same, and in response, the offending passenger is usually extremely rude or
simply continues with their bad behavior. It seems to me that a bus driver should speak up in
these situations, in essence, giving credence to those of us who have enough courage to ask others
to follow the rules just so we all can have a pleasant commute. If bus drivers are not going to have
any additional duties and are trained to avoid conflict, how exactly are these courtesy rules going
to be enforced?

One of the biggest “courtesy” problems is that individuals block the seat next to them with their
bags, their feet, or their entire body. Many people also sit in such a way that their knees are on
the seat in front of them, so the person sitting in front of them cannot recline. | would suggest
that if drivers notice this, they turn on the lights and make a verbal announcement, “Everyone,
there are new bus rules, you are NOT allowed to...etc.” Another way to handle this would be to
have random “bus marshals” or security personnel who periodically ride the buses over the hill and
confront passengers who are being discourteous (or warn them in writing). This would address the
current bad behavior and discourage others from the same bad behavior later on, since no one
would know when one of these “marshals” was present. The marshal or security personnel could
also just ride from Santa Cruz to Scotts Valley if they needed to stay in Santa Cruz county. Another
solution would be to encourage other passengers to take photographs of the offending behavior.
These photos could be submitted as evidence of repeated violations of the Code of Conduct (for
example, a minimum of three different instances), so that Metro could actually attempt to pursue
an appropriate remedial measure against these repeat offenders.

My other concern is with educating the public. It seems like Metro only intends to post information
regarding the new Code of Conduct on their website, at each of its transit centers, and on bilingual
cards. This will not be sufficient. The key points of these rules should be outlined in pictogram
form and posted inside each bus. That way, everyone will (or at least should) be aware of what
behavior is not allowed. If someone is sitting with their feet on a seat, and the driver does nothing,
BUT there is a pictogram of a person doing the exact same thing with a big red slash through it, |
could easily point to that rule and confidently say, “please move your feet.”

Again, | think implementing your new rules is a step in the right direction. | hope you will review
my concerns and consider my suggestions regarding your new Code of Conduct. | look forward to

hearing your thoughts.

| have attached a few sample pictogram photos to demonstrate what sort of signage would be
useful in the future. These sorts of signs could be understood by anyone.

7.4



COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

S g '] Offer Your Seat

Keap Your Stuff
To Yourself
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Dude...

Stop the Spread|
Please

H's B Space E5ue.

Thank you,
Deanna Trinidad
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

f i santacruz METRO

DATE: January 26, 2018
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

SUBJECT. RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors Approve Staff Recommendations for Claims for

Rejection

the Month of January 2018

SUMMARY

This staff report provides the Board of Directors with recommendations on claims
submitted to the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO).

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

METRO'’s Risk Department received three claims for the month of January 2018
for money or damages. As a public entity, METRO must act “within 45 days after
the claim has been presented” (Govt C §912.4(a)). See staff recommendations

in paragraph VI.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

None

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Within the 45-day period, the Board of Directors may take the following actions:

e Reject the claim entirely;

e Allow it in full;

e Allow it in part and reject the balance;

e Compromise it, if the liability or amount due is disputed (Govt C
§912.4(a)); or

¢ Do nothing, and allow the claim to be denied by operation of law (Govt C
§912.4 ©).

of Claim

11-01.1
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VI. DESCRIPTION OF CLAIMS

Claimant Claim # Description Recommended
Action
Mick, Jeff 17-0015 | Claimant claims a METRO Reject
bus encroached upon the
bike lane and damaged
his bicycle.
Manson, Sylvia | 18-0001 | Claimant claims a METRO Reject
bus clipped the bumper of
her parked car.
Prindle, Cecelia | 18-0002 | METRO bus allegedly Reject
= contacts claimant’s car as
= they both enter left turn.

Prepared by: Tom Szestowicki, Safety Specialist

Rejection of Claim

11-01.2



Board of Directors
January 26, 2018
Page 3 of 3

Vil. APPROVAL:

/
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager /%Z/ %/

Rejection of Claim

11-01.3
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f j
TO: Board of Directors sanracriz METRO
FROM: Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

SUBJECT:. ACCEPT AND FILE PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL

DETAIL FOR THE MONTHS OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the preliminary approved Check

VI.

Journal Detail for the months of November and December 2017

SUMMARY

e This staff report provides the Board with a preliminary approved Check Journal
Detail for the months of November and December 2017.

e The Finance Department is submitting the check journals for Board acceptance
and filing.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

This preliminary approved Check Journal Detail provides the Board with a listing of
the vendors and amounts paid out on a monthly cash flow basis (Operating and
Capital expenses).

All invoices submitted for the months of November and December 2017 have been
processed, checks issued and signed by the Finance Manager.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT
None. The check journal is a presentation of invoices paid in November and

December 2017 for purposes of Board review, agency disclosure, accountability
and transparency.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Check Journal Detail for November & December 2017
Prepared By: Holly Alcorn, Senior Accounting Technician

11-02.1
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VI. APPROVALS:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager OW‘%V&\ Ok/(%v\

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

November and December 2017 Check Journal

11-02.2



Attachment A
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

January 26, 2018 :-;... ismmmuz METRO

DATE:
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

SUBJECT. ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO BOARD

OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF NOVEMBER 17, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors Accept and File the Minutes for the Santa Cruz

Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) Board of Directors Meeting of
November 17, 2017

VI.

SUMMARY

e Stalff is providing minutes from the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
(METRO) Board of Directors Meeting of November 17, 2017.

e Each meeting, the Executive Assistant will provide minutes from the previous
METRO Board of Directors meeting.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Board requested that staff include, in the Board Packet, minutes for previous
METRO Board of Directors meetings. Staff is enclosing the minutes from these
meetings.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

None.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Draft minutes for the Board of Directors Meeting of
November 17, 2017

Prepared by: Gina Pye, Executive Assistant
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SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA MEETING MINUTES*
NOVEMBER 17, 2017 — 9:00 AM
WATSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
275 MAIN STREET
WATSONVILLE, CA 95076

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO)
was convened on Friday, November 17, 2017 at the Watsonville City Council Chambers, 275 Main
Street, Watsonville, CA

The Board Meeting Agenda Packet can be found online at www.SCMTD.com and is available for
inspection at Santa Cruz METRO’s Administrative offices<at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz,
California.  *Minutes are “summary” minutes, not verbatim minutes. Audio recordings of Board
meeting open sessions are available to the public upon request.

This document has been created with accessibility in mind. With the exception of certain 3rd party
and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Accessibility Full Check. If you have any
questions about the accessibility of this ‘document, please email your inquiry to
accessibility@scmtd.com

SECTION I:'OPEN SESSION

1 CALL TO ORDER at 9:04 AM by Chair Dutra.

2 ROLL CALL: The following Directors were present, representing a quorum:
Director Ed Bottorff City of Capitola
Director Cynthia Chase City of Santa Cruz
Director Jimmy Dutra City of Watsonville
Director Norm Hagen County of Santa Cruz
Director John Leopold County of Santa Cruz
Director Donna Lind City of Scotts Valley
Director Cynthia Mathews City of Santa Cruz
Director Bruce McPherson County of Santa Cruz
Director Oscar Rios City of Watsonville
Director Dan Rothwell County of Santa Cruz
Director Mike Rotkin County of Santa Cruz
Ex-Officio Director Larry Pageler UC Santa Cruz
Ex-Officio Director Liber McKee Cabirillo College

Ex-Officio Director McKee and Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were
absent.

STAFF PRESENT:

Alex Clifford METRO CEO/General Manager
Julie Sherman METRO General Counsel
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9-01

9-02

9-03

METRO EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO VOLUNTARILY INDICATED
THEY WERE PRESENT (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER) WERE:

Eulalio Abrego, Bus Operator Debbie Kinslow, METRO
Angela Aitken, METRO Joey Martinez, MAC
Jolene Church, METRO Daniel Zaragoza, METRO
ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chair Dutra introduced Carlos Landaverry and his Spanish Language interpretation services.
He announced that the meeting is being televised by Community Television of Santa Cruz
County with technician, Mr. Victor Herrmann, and today’s Watsonville City Technician is Mr.
Suryel Vazquez.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS
Numerous Board members expressed their appreciation to all who contributed to the
successful passage of Cabrillo College’s Student Bus Pass Program.

Chair Dutra invited the assembly to attend the 6:00PM November 20" outreach event to
discuss the Watsonville Transit Center mural project. The mural artist will be in attendance.

Hearing no further comments, Chair Dutra moved to the next agenda item.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A number of the public spoke regarding a variety of issues:

e Mrs. Ofelia Gomez expressed concerns pertaining to several intersections within the
county and requested changes to Route 71.

e Brian Peoples, Trail Now representative, noted their support of METRO and Measure D.
He suggested METRO Board members be more vocal in their support of METRO and it's
funding needs.

o Eulalio Abrego, Bus Operator, expressed concerns related to the articulated buses.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAC
Having none, Chair Dutra moved to the next item.

LABOR ORGANIZATION COMMUNICATIONS
Having none, Chair Dutra moved to the next item.

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS
CONSENT AGENDA
RECOMMENDED ACTION ON TORT CLAIMS

ACCEPT AND FILE: PRELIMINARY APPROVED CHECK JOURNAL DETAIL FOR
THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2017

ACCEPT AND FILE: MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO OCTOBER 27, 2017
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AND MINUTES OF THE
NOVEMBER 10, 2017 SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

11-03A.2
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9-04

9-05

9-06

9-07

9-08

9-09

9-10

9-11

9-12

9-13

ACCEPT AND FILE: METRO PARACRUZ OPERATIONS STATUS REPORT FOR
JULY, AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER 2017

ACCEPT AND FILE: METRO SYSTEM RIDERSHIP REPORTS FOR THE FIRST
QUARTER OF FY18

ACCEPT AND FILE: QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT OF GRANT APPLICATIONS,
ACTIVE GRANTS AND FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES JULY — SEPTEMBER 2017

APPROVE: CONSIDER A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE CEO AS THE
AUTHORIZED AGENT TO SUBMIT A PROJECT LIST AND EXECUTE
AGREEMENTS TO RECEIVE CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAIR FUNDS

APPROVE: CONSIDER A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO SUBMIT A
GRANT APPLICATION AND EXECUTE ALL: DOCUMENTS AND FURTHER
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO CALIFORNIA ~TRANSIT AND INTERCITY RAIL
CAPITAL PROGRAM FUNDS

PULLED FROM CONSENT AT VICE CHAIR McPHERSON’S REQUEST

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING PROJECTS AND
AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS AND EXECUTE
DOCUMENTS AND FURTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO RECEIVE CALIFORNIA
SB1 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM FUNDS

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO EXECUTE A
CONTRACT WITH GIRO, INC. FOR HASTUS SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND
SUPPORT

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING T HE CEO TO APPROVE THE
PURCHASE OF SERVERS IN-A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $50,000

ACCEPT AND FILE: SANTA CRUZ METRO’S ANNUAL INVENTORY OF OWNED
AND LEASED PROPERTY

APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING INCREASED CONTRACT
AUTHORITY TO REFLECT AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF FUNDING FOR THE
LEASE-TO-PURCHASE OF THREE FORTY-FOOT NEW FLYER XCELSIOR BUSES
FROM PAUL REVERE TRANSPORTATION

Public comment:

Mrs. Ofelia Gomez elaborated on her concerns pertaining to several intersections within the
county and requested changes to Routes 69W, 71 and 91.

ACTION: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSENT AGENDA AS PRESENTED, EXCEPTING
AGENDA ITEM 9-09, CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING PROJECTS AND
AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS AND EXECUTE DOCUMENTS AND
FURTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO RECEIVE CALIFORNIA SB1 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP
PROGRAM FUNDS, WHICH WAS PULLED FROM CONSENT
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MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR LIND

MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and
Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.

REGULAR AGENDA

9-09 PULLED FROM CONSENT AT REQUEST OF VICE CHAIR McPHERSON TO BE
DISCUSSED AS THE FIRST ITEM UNDER THE REGULAR AGENDA
APPROVE: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING PROJECTS AND
AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS AND EXECUTE
DOCUMENTS AND FURTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO RECEIVE CALIFORNIA
SB1 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM FUNDS
CEO Clifford provided background to the agenda item and.summarized the request.

Pubic comments:

Luis Mendez, SCCRTC Deputy Director, provided a brief summary of RTC’s plan, adding the
Call for Projects recommendations will be presented to the Commission at the 12/7/17
meeting.

Board comments:

Board members expressed their opinions and support for the agenda item. They also
suggested the following change to the second line in the first paragraph on page two of the
resolution: Insert the words “believes it” such that the paragraph now reads: WHEREAS, the
expenditure plan for Santa Cruz County:Measure D allocates 16% of its tax revenue to
METRO; therefore, METRO believes it is entitled to 16% of the County’s LPP revenue earned
by virtue of Measure D; and,

ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE.THE RESOLUTION AS AMENDED APPROVING PROJECTS
AND AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO SUBMIT APPLICATIONS AND EXECUTE DOCUMENTS AND
FURTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO RECEIVE CALIFORNIA SB1 LOCAL PARTNERSHIP
PROGRAM FUNDS‘AS PRESENTED WITH THE INCORPORATED CHANGES

MOTION: DIRECTOR McPHERSON SECOND: DIRECTOR ROTKIN

MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and
Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.

10 RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR RETIREE, SAMUEL G. GARCIA
In the absence of Mr. Garcia, the resolution was read aloud. Chair Dutra thanked Mr. Garcia
for his contributions in absentia.

.ACTION: MOTION TO ACCEPT THE RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION AS PRESENTED.

MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR ROTHWELL

MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and
Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.
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11 APPROVE: REQUEST BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO REFER TO THE FINANCE
STANDING COMMITTEE A DISCUSSION ABOUT INITIATING A FARE
RESTRUCTURING ANALYSIS

Barrow Emerson, Planning and Development Manager, provided commentary to the agenda
item.

Board members expressed their support for new technology, which would enable METRO to
get away from the physical loading of currency into the till, which takes a lot of time and
affects the system’s on-time performance.

There were no public comments.

ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
REFER TO THE FINANCE STANDING COMMITTEE A DISCUSSION ABOUT INITIATING
A FARE RESTRUCTURING ANALYSIS AS PRESENTED

MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR HAGEN

MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and
Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.

12 ACCEPT AND FILE THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF
AUGUST 31, 2017
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager, provided commentary to the presentation and directed the
Board’s attention to the highlighted lines on the distributed document entitled, “Santa Cruz
Metropolitan Transit District 5 Year Budget Plan”, which delineates at-risk STA funding over
the next five years. (See-attached). 'Director Rotkin requested Ms. Aitken add the word
“probably” to the last sentence on the document.

Board members and staff discussed ridership statistics and overtime as referenced in the
board packet.

There were nopublic comments,
ACTION: MOTION TO ACCEPT AND FILE THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL
REPORT AS OF JULY 31, 2017 AS PRESENTED
MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR ROTHWELL
MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and

Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.

13 ORAL METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) SEMI ANNUAL REPORT
Joseph Martinez, MAC Vice Chair, provided an oral report of the MAC’s activities over the
past six months, expressing their appreciation for the timely text messages. On behalf of the
MAC members, he requested Wi-Fi be extended to Routes 71, 91, 69W and 35, which could
help to increase ridership, lessening traffic congestion and easing parking requirements.

14 THREE METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MAC) MEMBERS' TERMS EXPIRE
DECEMBER 31, 2017
Public comments:

Joseph Martinez, MAC Vice Chair, expressed concern with the three retiring MAC members.
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CEO Clifford addressed Mr. Martinez’s concerns and explained the recruitment process to fill
vacancies.

ACTION:

MOTION TO OPEN A 30-DAY NOMINATION PERIOD BEGINNING DECEMBER 1,

2017, TO ACCEPT NOMINEES INCLUDING ENCOURAGING CURRENT MAC MEMBERS TO
APPLY IF THEY ARE INTERESTED AND ASK THAT THEY CONTINUE TO SERVE UNTIL THEY
ARE REPLACED.

MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR HAGEN

MOTION PASSED WITH 6 AYES (Directors Dutra, Hagen, Lind, McPherson, Rothwell and
Rotkin). Directors Bottorff, Chase, Leopold, Mathews and Rios were absent.

21 CEO ORAL REPORT
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager, commented on a variety of topics:

Copies of the half-sheet tri-fold brochure entitled,“*Santa Cruz METRO’s Dramatic Fiscal
Recovery” demonstrating METRO’s path to<long-term financial viability were made
available to the Board and assembly.

METRO’s Schedule by Stop service (an interim step to the AVL) Public Service

Announcement was viewed.

Articulated bus training is scheduled to begin November 20 with a plan to be in service

January 2018.

The BYD electric bus trial did not evidence promised performance. Regular updates will

be provided as the process proceeds.

The Highway 17 Joint Powers Authority Agreement has been approved for next two years.

Anticipated January Board Meeting agenda topics include:

0 October ridership'was up /approximately 6% year-over-year. Further information will be
provided at the January 2018 Board meeting.

o ParaCruz, Fixed Route and a Facilities Code of Conduct will be circulated to the
unions for review, with an intent to bring the matters before the Board at the January
meeting.

Board members were invited to participate in the upcoming METRO events:

0 November 21 Thanksgiving potluck at METRO Admin offices

o December 2 Holiday Parade in Downtown Santa Cruz

0 December 20 Christmas/Holiday potluck at METRO Admin offices

There were no public comments.

22 ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING: FRIDAY, JANUARY 26, 2018, AT 9:00AM
AT METRO’S ADMIN OFFICES, 110 VERNON STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA
Chair Dutra announced the next meeting as above.

23 ADJOURNMENT
Chair Dutra adjourned the meeting at 10:41AM

Respectfully submitted,

Gina Pye

Executive Assistant
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DATE:
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO

FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING
OF JANUARY 5, 2018

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors Accept and File the Minutes for the Santa Cruz

Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) Finance, Budget and Audit Standing

VI.

Committee Meeting of January 5, 2018

SUMMARY
e Staff is providing minutes from the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District

(METRO) Finance, Budget and Audit Standing Committee Meeting of January
5, 2018.

e Each meeting, the Executive Assistant will provide minutes from the previous
METRO Committee meeting.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Board requested that staff include, in the Board Packet, minutes for previous
METRO Committee meetings. Staff is enclosing the minutes from these
meetings.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

None.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Draft minutes for the Finance, Budget and Audit Standing
Committee Meeting of January 5, 2018

Prepared by: Gina Pye, Executive Assistant
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SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO)
FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE AGENDA
MEETING MINUTES*

JANUARY 5, 2018 — 9:30 AM
METRO ADMIN OFFICES
110 VERNON STREET
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060

A Finance, Budget and Audit Standing Committee Meeting was convened on Friday, January 5, 2018
at METRO’s Admin offices at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, Calif . The Meeting Agenda Packet
can be found online at www.SCMTD.com and is available for ins ion at METRO’s Administrative
offices at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California. *Minute mary” minutes, not verbatim
minutes. Audio recordings of Board meeting open sessions 0 the public upon request.

This document has been created with accessibility in
other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Acc
about the accessibility of this document, please email you

e exception of certain 3rd party and
ull Check. If you have any questions
uiry to accessibility@scmtd.com

CO

Director John Leopold, C ittee
Director Donna Lind

Director Cynthia M

Director Oscar Rios

County of Santa Cruz
City of Scotts Valley
City of Santa Cruz
City of Watsonville

Alex Clifford METRO CEO/General Manager
Julie Sher, METRO District Counsel

EETING TIME: 9:30AM
NOTE: THE C E CHAIR MAY TAKE ITEMS OUT OF ORDER

CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 9:31AM by Committee Chair Leopold; noting all Committee Members
were present

Director Rios was sworn in by Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager.

ROLL CALL: The following Directors were present, representing a quorum:

Director Cynthia Mathews City of Santa Cruz
Director Leopold County of Santa Cruz
Director Donna Lind City of Scotts Valley
Director Oscar Rios City of Watsonville
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METRO EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO VOLUNTARILY INDICATED
THEY WERE PRESENT (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER) WERE:

Angela Aitken, METRO Pete Rasmussen, METRO
Debbie Kinslow, METRO

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE FINANCE, BUDGET & AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE
Hearing none, the Committee Chair moved to the next agenda item.

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS FROM AGENDA / ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO SUPPORT
EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS

In response to Director Mathews’ inquiry regarding the status of the Pacific Station redesign, Mr.
Emerson advised that final interviews are being conducted next week in response to one RFP. The
other was delayed due to consultant calendar conflicts.

ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 12, 2017 FINANCE, BUDGET AND AUDIT
STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES
There were no public comments.

ACTION: MOTION TO ACCEPT AND FILE THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 12, 2017 FINANCE,
BUDGET AND AUDIT STANDING COMMITTEE ASIPRESENTED.

MOTION: Director Mathews SEEGOND: Director Lind

MOTION CARRIED BY THOSE VOTINGIMEMBERS,PRESENT.

APPROVE THE FINANCE STANDING COMMIFFEE RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS TO INITIATE A FARE'RESTRUCTURING ANALYSIS PROCESS

Barrow Emerson, Planning and Bevelopment Manager, introduced Matt Marquez, Intern, and Pete
Rasmussen, Transportation Planner. Mr."Emerson explained the purpose and intent behind the
proposed fare restructuring analySiggprocess and provided an attachment entitled, “Farebox
Recovery %: FY12 to FY22"“Refereneing Attachment A, page 6Al.1, he noted that as costs
continue to grow, the fare revenueiis projected to remain stable. He added that potential pay
increases over the nexhfew years @are not included; however, they are anticipated due to upcoming
union negotiations.

CEO Clifford and others noted nationwide ridership is trending downward. METRO is being
aggressive in assuming stable ridership. A presentation on ridership and trends will be presented at
a future board meeting.

Director Leopold suggested the dates and specifics of previous fare increases be highlighted when
presented to the Board.

Mr. Emerson and his department will be conducting an analysis relative to potential service to Los
Gatos and/or San Jose Airport to address potential ridership growth opportunities.

Mr. Emerson added that METRO will be submitting a TIRCP grant application within the next couple
of weeks requesting funding for approximately 20 mobile ticket readers and new buses.

CEO Cilifford reminded the assembly that the purpose of today’s meeting was to initiate the fare
restructuring analysis process. METRO will return in February with additional information addressing
a number of matters; e.g., the high cost of living in Santa Cruz and the Bay area, the cost breakdown
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of all fare options (passes, discounts, etc.), and revenue potential of various levels of fare
increase(s).

Mr. Rasmussen discussed fare payment technology and the anticipated benefits to METRO, our
customers and the public. The Planning team has identified substandard fare technology in
examples such as: the amount of time consumed processing cash payments, lack of a ticket vending
machine and/or Customer Service at Diridon Station, etc.

METRO is currently considering two levels of fare technology:

1) Mobile ticketing; and,
2) Account-based systems

Discussion ensued surrounding funding opportunities and possible fare structures, METRO'’s
customer base, the pros/cons of local and nationwide fare payment applications, the possible
advantages of publicizing UCSC articulated buses, reaching ou ocal school districts, board
members constituents, other public agencies/organizations, fits of including METRO Operators,
Customer Service and their input, etc.

Mr. Rasmussen will provide a copy of his talking poi 0 the Commi
cover.

Members under separate

There were no public comments.

G COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
FARE RESTRUCTURING ANALYSIS

ACTION: MOTION TO APPROVE THE FI
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
PROCESS

N

MOTION: Director Lind D: Director Mathews

MOTION CARRIED BY THOSE G MEMBERS PRESENT.

Committee Chair Legpeld adjour

Respectfully submitted,

Gina Pye
Executive Assistant

11-04A.3
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

January 26, 2018 :-;... ismmmuz METRO

DATE:
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ METRO

PERSONNEL/HR STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JANUARY 16,
2018

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors Accept and File the Minutes for the Santa Cruz

Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) Personnel/HR Standing Committee

VI.

Meeting of January 16, 2018

SUMMARY

e Staff is providing minutes from the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
(METRO) Personnel/HR Standing Committee Meeting of January 16, 2018.

e Each meeting, the Executive Assistant will provide minutes from the previous
METRO Committee meeting.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Board requested that staff include, in the Board Packet, minutes for previous
METRO Committee meetings. Staff is enclosing the minutes from these
meetings.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

None.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Draft minutes for the Personnel/HR Standing Committee
Meeting of January 16, 2018

Prepared by: Gina Pye, Executive Assistant
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SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (METRO)
PERSONNEL/HUMAN RESOURCES STANDING COMMITTEE AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES*

JANUARY 16, 2018 - 1:00PM
METRO ADMIN OFFICES
110 VERNON STREET
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060

The Personnel/Human Resources Standing Committee convened a meeting as
referenced above. The Meeting Agenda Packet can be found online at www.SCMTD.com
and is available for inspection at Santa Cruz Metro’s Administrative offices at 110 Vernon
Street, Santa Cruz, California. *Minutes are “summary”™ minutes, not verbatim minutes.
Audio recordings of Board meeting open sessions are available to the public upon
request.

This document has been created with accessibility in‘mind. With the exception of certain
3rd party and other attachments, it passes the Adobe Acrobat XI Accessibility Full Check.
If you have any questions about the accessibility of this document, please email your
inquiry to accessibility@scmtd.com

COMMITTEE ROSTER

Director Jimmy Dutra, Chair City of Watsonville

Director Norm‘Hagen County of Santa Cruz
Director John Leopold County of Santa Cruz
Director Bruce McPherson, Vice Chair County of Santa Cruz

Director Mike Rotkin, Past Immediate Chair County of Santa Cruz

Alex Clifford METRO CEO/General Manager
Julie Sherman METRO General Counsel

CALL TO ORDER at 1:10PM by Committee Chair Dutra

ROLL CALL: The following Directors were present, representing quorum:

Director Jimmy Dutra, Chair City of Watsonville

Director Norm Hagen County of Santa Cruz

11-05A.1
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Director Bruce McPherson, Vice Chair County of Santa Cruz
Director Mike Rotkin, Past Immediate Chair County of Santa Cruz

Director John Leopold, County of Santa Cruz, was absent.

METRO EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO VOLUNTARILY
INDICATED THEY WERE PRESENT (IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER) WERE:

Erron Alvey Joan Jeffries, SEIU — SEA
Patti Davidoski, SEIU Olivia Martinez, SEIU
Juan Jose Garcia, SEIU — VMU Michael Rios, SEIU — PSA

Anna Gouveia

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS FROM AGENDA/ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION TO
SUPPORT EXISTING AGENDA ITEMS
None

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PERSONNEL/HUMAN RESOURCES STANDING
COMMITTEE

Eduardo Montesino expressed his opinion regarding.communications between the
unions and the management team. He reminded the assembly that contract negotiations
would open in June 2019. Chair Dutra and Mr. Montesino discussed Mr. Montesino's
concerns regarding the labor attorney's interpretation of the UTU MOU, including the
consideration of past practices.

ACCEPT AND FILE THE MINUTES OF THE PERSONNEL/HR STANDING
COMMITTEE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2017
There was no public comment.

MOTION TO ACCEPT AND FILE THE MINUTES OF THE PERSONNEL/HR
STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2017 AS PRESENTED

MOTION: Director Rotkin SECOND: Director McPherson

The motion was passedunanimously with Chair Dutra abstaining.

REVIEW MANAGEMENT CLASS AND COMPENSATION STUDY RESULTS AND
CONSIDER APPROVING RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HR Manager, Jolene Church, introduced Andi Bernard, Principal Consultant with CPS,
noting today’s presentation would help the board understand the components of the
compensation analysis portion of the class and compensation for management study
and that in adopting a compensation methodology for the organization, this could be
applied in the future to SEIU.

Finance Manager, Angela Aitken, provided background to the project mentioning that
any recommendations received today would be forwarded to the full board at the
January 26™ meeting as well as approval of the proposed position descriptions. SEIU,
UTU and management have agreed on the comparison agencies in this project.
Compensation comparisons will take into consideration total compensation.

The goal of today’s meeting is to obtain a Committee recommendation/decision to
present to the full Board on January 26, 2018.
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The members discussed the high cost of living and the cost of wages in Santa Cruz
County, particularly as they apply to the comparable agencies. Ms. Bernard explained
the CPS methodology and how it will affect the compensation outcome(s). In summary,
the Cost of Living and the Cost of Wages has already factored into the methodology
through the selection of the comparative agencies.

CEO Cilifford provided a brief history of difficulties encountered when METRO attempted
to fill management positions.

Suggestions were made to possibly use a phased approach to setting the pay ranges to
work within current and future METRO financial conditions.

Public Comment;

Mr. Montesino assumed the question of total compensation as it applies to an individual
versus to a family would be addressed at a later date.

Joan Jeffries asked questions regarding methodology; e.g., How will wage compaction
issues be handled: How would total cost of benefits from different areas be addressed

when different insurance providers are offered? What if an.employee is paid above the
salary level recommended? Etc.

Olivia Martinez referred to Article 7.1 in the MOU addressing her concerns with the study
and requested a meeting with CPS and management before the study is undertaken for
the SEIU.

Management responded that a meeting:would be set up with the SEIU prior to the
implementation of the SEIU study.

MOTION TO APPROVE THE POSITION.DESCRIPTIONS AND APPROVE THE
METHODOLOGY AS PRESENTED, RESERVING APPROVAL OF THE PAY RANGES
UNTIL DATA IS RECEIVED AT ALL THREE LEVELS: 5% BELOW MEDIAN, AT
MEDIAN AND 5% ABOVE MEDIAN TO DETERMINE COST IMPACT TO METRO.

MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR McPHERSON

The motion was passed unanimously with Chair Dutra abstaining.

REVIEW UPDATES TO METRO BYLAWS AND CONSIDER APPROVING
RECOMMENDATION TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Julie Sherman, METRO General Counsel, provided a brief summary of recommended
changes. CEO Clifford announced he plans to ask the Board to appoint an ad hoc

committee to address legislative initiatives, including corrections to METRO's enabling
legislation that affect board gap terms at the next board meeting.

CEO Cilifford brought the Committee’s attention to page 12 of 26, noting that a per diem
option would now be offered for travel reimbursement.

There was no public comment.

MOTION TO ACCEPT AND PROVIDE A RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AS PRESENTED

MOTION: DIRECTOR ROTKIN SECOND: DIRECTOR HAGEN
The motion was passed unanimously with Chair Dutra abstaining.
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MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 2:51P BY CHAIR DUTRA

Submitted by

Gina Pye
Executive Assistant

11-05A.4



Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

SUBJECT:. ACCEPT AND FILE MINUTES FOR THE METRO ADVISORY

COMMITTEE (MAC) MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Board of Directors accept and file the minutes for the METRO Advisory

Committee (MAC) meeting of August 16, 2017

SUMMARY

e Staff is providing minutes from the MAC meeting of August 16, 2017.

e Each quarter the Administrative Assistant will provide the minutes from the
previous MAC meeting.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Board requested that staff include in the Board Packet minutes from
previous MAC meetings. Staff is enclosing the minutes from these meetings.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Approved Minutes for the MAC meeting of August 16, 2017

Prepared By: Donna Bauer, Administrative Assistant
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V. APPROVALS:

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager W//
&7 ia

MAC Minutes
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MINUTES METRO
MAC MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2017 OMMITTEE

(MAC)

The METRO Advisory Committee (MAC) met on Wednesday, August 16, 2017 in the METRO
Administrative Office located at 110 Vernon Street in Santa Cruz, California.

1 CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 6:13 PM.

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS PRESENT

Michael Pisano, Chair Naomi Gunther

Joseph Martinez, Vice Chair Donald Peattie

Veronica Elsea Becky Taylor

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO VOLUNTARILY INDICATED THEY WERE PRESENT
Stanley Sokolow Stuart Rosenstein

SANTA CRUZ METRO EMPLOYEES PRESENT

Ciro Aguirre, COO
Barrow Emerson, Planning and Development Manager

2 ORAL/WRITTEN COMMUNICATION

Ms. Elsea mentioned the METRO Grand Jury Report had been released and suggested
everyone review it. Mr. Emerson, Planning and Development Manager, commented that
there will be a formal presentation at the upcoming Board of Directors’ Meeting with
responses by the CEO and Board of Directors.

Ms. Elsea also had a concern about finding a conference room for the MAC meetings. She
heard that Suite 11 on the first floor of the Pacific Station is vacant and recommended that
METRO use that space for the MAC meetings. Mr. Aguirre, COO, responded that there are
three to four interested parties that want to lease that space for business purposes,
generating income for METRO. He added that METRO is working on redesigning the
Pacific Station’s upstairs to include a conference room.

Ms. Taylor asked if the conference room in the Watsonville Transit Center was available for
use. Mr. Aguirre acknowledged there is a small office in the back but that is being set up for
the Eligibility Coordinator and is not conducive for holding meetings. Vice Chair Martinez
added that he has been there and agreed that the office space is too small to hold the MAC
meetings.

Mr. Rosenstein, a member of the public and former MAC Member, recognized METRO’s
excellent service and courteous and friendly Bus Operators. He respectfully raised the
following concerns:

¢ Due to his experience last year, he recommended extra buses be on standby for the
upcoming holiday season.

e Requested the connections between Caltrain and the Hwy. 17 bus be timed better. Ken
Yeager, Vice Chair of the Board of Directors at Caltrain, told him that Caltrain is
dominated by the freight lines and couldn’t change their schedule. Mr. Emerson
explained that METRO attempts to meet their schedules when possible.

e Google is not a reliable source for schedule changes.
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¢ Requested the smoking area and plastic receptacle for cigarette butts be moved away
from the bus stop at the San Jose Diridon Station. Mr. Rosenstein will provide pictures
of the locations to Mr. Aguirre for review.

o The schedule sticker for the Hwy. 17 bus stop at the San Jose Diridon Station is
outdated. Mr. Rosenstein will provide a picture to Mr. Emerson for review.

¢ Recommended Bus Operators announce to passengers to please move back to make
room for people trying to get on the bus and leaving fewer riders behind.

e It can get very uncomfortable when Bus Operators turn off the air or heat when they go
up a hill on Hwy. 17 and then don’t turn them back on after the climb.

e When the 69 or 71 buses are late, Bus Operators tell him they are late due to traffic and
tell him that he should have taken an earlier bus. Ms. Gunther said that she has heard
that, too, and doesn't feel that is an appropriate response by a Bus Operator. Mr.
Emerson added that with the limited road network in Santa Cruz County, any incident
throws the time schedules off. Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) would allow METRO to
scientifically forecast travel times but is a $2 million solution. Chair Pisano asked if any
grant money is available. Mr. Emerson said that any grant money METRO can acquire
will go towards buying new buses. Chair Pisano.asked if there is any way to partner with
Comcast or AT&T. He knows Comcast has worked with other bus systems back East
not only with WiFi but with the AVL. Mr. Emerson said he would look into it.

e Requested new buses have table trays large enough to hold an iPad and a cup of coffee
as the current trays are either too small or often broken.

e Customer Service hold times can be 30 — 45 minutes and often the line disconnects. It is
very frustrating to hold that long and then be dropped. Others echoed that same
experience.

e Recommended that METRO supply bus service information to the San Jose Airport
Information Kiosk.

¢ Additional holiday service.

¢ Inresponse to Mr. Rosenstein’s inquiry about notification of the arrival of buses, MAC
Members and METRO employees provided information about METRO'’s subscriber
alerts.

Chair Pisano suggested adding a bus stop at Scotts Valley Enterprise Technology Center.

3 ACCEPT & FILE MINUTES . FROM THE METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING OF
MAY 17, 2017

MOTION: ACCEPT & FILE MINUTES FROM THE METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING OF MAY 17, 2017

MOTION: GUNTHER SECOND: ELSEA
AYES: PISANO, MARTINEZ, GUNTHER, AND TAYLOR
NAYES: NONE
ABSTAIN: ELSEA AND PEATTIE
MOTION: CARRIED
4 COMMUNICATIONS FROM METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Chair Pisano gave his semi-annual report at the June 23, 2017 Board of Directors’ Meeting
and mentioned the staff shortages, kneeling the buses and bus stop issues.
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5 SERVICE PLANNING UPDATE

Mr. Emerson gave an overview of the FY17 Q4 ridership and handed out the Quarterly
System Ridership Summary and Quarterly Average Ridership by Route Report which are
attached for review.

Current projects that Planning is working on:

e Leasing three articulated buses for six months at UCSC.
¢ Ridership surveys from Hwy. 17 riders.

¢ Route adjustments.

e Scotts Valley Enterprise Technology Center.

Projects down range:

UCSC's student election next May might affect service on the campus.

Entering year two of the Cabrillo two-year contract.

Working with the City of Santa Cruz on downtown employee bus passes.

Discussion on METRO'’s arrangement with Santa Cruz County regarding the benefits
of METRO bus passes, tax breaks, and recipients.

METRO received a grant for an electric bus to operate as a Watsonville Circulator.

e The Unified Corridor Study is being performed to analyze long-range (20-30 years)
transportation use of the Hwy. 1, Soquel/Freedom, and rail corridors.

Ms. Elsea asked Mr. Emerson about METRO's handling of long-term construction projects.
Notification and impact to riders was discussed. Mr. Aguirre explained the 55-day memo
which solidifies the discussions, strategy, anddogistics of impacted routes. Several
examples and suggestions were exchanged.

6 DISCUSS STAFFING SHORTAGES/DROPPED ROUTES
Chair Pisano altered the Agenda sequence to discuss Item 7 before Item 6.

Mr. Aguirre gave some background on this issue and reminded everyone that METRO has
been actively hiring people to address the dropped service.

7 DISCUSS BUS OPERATORS — KNEELING BUSES

In response to Ms. Gunther’s safety concerns with kneeling and nonkneeling of buses, Mr.
Aguirre said he would issue a memo to the Bus Operators reminding them to adhere to
kneeling the bus at every stop, boarding or alighting. He requested that if anyone
experiences this going forward to get the Bus Operator’s patch number so he can follow up
with the Bus Operator. Ms. Gunther stated that if she is not in a position on the bus to obtain
the patch number, she would collect the bus number and the time of the occurrence.

Ms. Elsea relayed her recent experience when she was on the panel for the new group of
Bus Operator trainees for their discussion about training accessibility, dealing with service
animals and people using wheelchairs. She pointed out that there are a number of things
that Bus Operators can do, such as kneeling the bus, that really are a courtesy to every
passenger, but they can be essential for a disabled passenger.

Ms. Elsea added she was impressed with the new class of trainees. They asked more
guestions and were very engaged.

8 SANTA CRUZ COUNTY FAIR — SEPT. 13 -17, 2017

Mr. Aguirre announced that METRO will expand service for all five days during the Santa
Cruz County Fair. Service will be provided on the 79 and on Paratransit. METRO will have
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10

11

12

13

14

two vehicles on site. Customer Service will work the booth. Mr. Aguirre encouraged
everyone to come out to the Fair and enjoy themselves. He praised Ms. Warnock,
Paratransit and Customer Service Superintendent, for doing a great job in promoting the Fair
and getting everyone geared up.

Ms. Taylor asked if people coming to the METRO booth at the Fair are actually buying
passes. Mr. Aguirre replied that being at the Fair allows METRO to integrate the community,
provide the public the opportunity to ask questions about the service, see and “experience” a
bus or Paratransit vehicle from the passenger seat or behind the steering wheel. Itis also a
good venue to advertise employment opportunities.

VACANCY ON METRO ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Ms. Elsea reminded everyone of the process for filling the vacancy is in the Bylaws. Articles
3.2 and 3.5 specifically address Members’ terms and vacancies. Ms. Bauer, Administrative
Assistant, and the MAC Members discussed the logistics and suggested best practices to
follow going forward in welcoming new MAC Members.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE SANTA CRUZ METRO CEO

None

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE SANTA CRUZ METRO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
None

ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING AGENDA

Follow Up on Kneeling Buses

Review Grand Jury Report and Responses
Update on Conference Room at the Pacific Station
Service Update

Chair Pisano and Ms..Gunther thanked the members of the public for attending the meeting.
DISTRIBUTION OF VOUCHER

Distributed by Ciro Aguirre, COO

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 7:38 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Donna Bauer
Administrative Assistant
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan

Transit District
DATE: August 25, 2017 f i
TO: Board of Directors savmacruz METRO

FROM: Barrow Emerson, Planning & Development Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE METRO SYSTEM RIDERSHIP REPORTS FOR THE
FOURTH QUARTER OF FY17

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION

This report is for informational purposes only. No action is required.

I SUMMARY

» This report contains ridership summaries and ridership by route for Santa Cruz
Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) fixed route bus service for the fourth quarter
(Q4) of FY17 (April 1 — June 30, 2017).

» Quarterly ridership reports are provided to keep the Board of Directors apprised of
METRO'’s ridership statistics and ridership trends.

L. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Attachment A shows system-wide and college student ridership statistics for Q4 of
FY17 and makes comparisons with ridership statistics from Q4 of FY16. This report
also displays the use of regular fare and regular and youth pass usage, as well as fare
and pass usage by seniors and people with disabilities.

e FY17 Q4 system-wide ridership decreased 4.8%
Reason(s) that Fixed-Route quarterly ridership decreased include:

o Service reduction implemented after September 8", 2016 decreased weekday
and weekend trips operated system-wide by 13% and 31%, respectively.
Frequency or span of service was reduced on 62% of our current routes,
providing an overall level of service.

o InQ4, 173 trips were canceled, comprising 1.1% of total scheduled revenue
service. The primary reason for dropped trips was staff shortages and, to a
lesser degree, mechanical issues. METRO recently added new Bus Operators
to address the staff shortage issue.

o Decreased Hwy 17 ridership contributed to overall system reduction; Hwy 17
comprises approximately 5% of Q4 ridership.

o Ride hailing services, such as Lyft or Uber, may be undermining transit ridership
if they are providing quicker, more convenient service
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Hwy 17 quarterly ridership decreased 6.5%
Reason(s) that Hwy 17 quarterly ridership decreased include:

O

Service reduction implemented in September 2016 decreased Hwy 17 trips
approximately 9%.

Looking at average gas prices in California over the last 5 years, they have
continued to remain relatively low; though the average gas prices in California
increased 12% in Q4 of FY17 compared to Q4 FY16.

In Q4, 26 Hwy 17 trips were canceled, comprising less than 1% of Hwy 17
scheduled revenue service. The primary reason for dropped trips was staff
shortages and, to a lesser degree, mechanical issues. Staff shortage issues
were resolved after June 15, the start of the summer bid, as the number of
driver shifts declined 14% and a new class of bus operators were put into
service,

UCSC ridership increased 2.5% in Q4 of FY17

Reason(s) that quarterly UCSC ridership increased include:

O

o

0

UCSC school days increased by 8% in Q4 FY17 compared to Q4 FY16.
Weekend trips were reduced by 15% from Q4FY16.

Uber and Lyft are claiming an increased share of trips from both METRO and
UCSC's bus on campus bus system

Quarterly Discounted Pass and Cash Fare usage decreased 15.2% and 7.3%,
respectively

Reason(s) that quarterly discounted pass and cash fare usage decreased include:

e}

Service reduction implemented after September 8", 2016 decreased weekday
and weekend trips operated system-wide by 13% and 31%, respectively.

System-wide ridership decreased 4.8% due to factors mentioned previously,
affecting overall discounted pass usage.

Possible increased use of alternative transportation for seniors and people with
disabilities, such as Lift Line.

Quarterly Regular Pass and Cash Fare totals decreased 32.9% and 16.2%
respectively

Reason(s) that quarterly regular pass and cash fare usage decreased include:

o Service reduction implemented after September 8th decreased overall trips

operated system-wide by 13%.

Q4 FY17 Ridership Report
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o System-wide ridership decreased 4.8% due to factors mentioned previously,
affecting overall pass usage.

o Due to implementation of the Cabrillo Student Bus Pass Program in fall 2016
approximately 650 less passes were sold on campus and through their Ticket
Vending Machine (TVM) this quarter. There were almost 70,000 Cabrillo
boardings in Q4.

o Loss of discretionary riders after September 2016 service reduction. As pass
purchases require more financial commitment up-front, discretionary riders are
more likely to purchase passes than our transit dependent riders.

Attachment B shows average ridership per trip for all weekday and weekend routes in
Q4 of FY17. System-wide, there was an average of 25 riders per weekday trip and 30
riders per weekend trip.

¢ The weekday route with the highest ridership averages are the routes 16.

o Route 16 serves UCSC via Laurel East. The route 16 had the highest weekday
ridership averages for the entirety of FY17.

» The weekend route with the highest ridership average is the route 16ST

o This route serves UGSC via Laurel East and is a supplemental route for which
UCSC is billed monthly.

» The weekday routes with the lowest ridership averages are routes: 34, 33, and 79.
o The route 34 serves South Felton on weekdays during the SLVUSD school
term; the route 33 serves Lompico SLV/Felton Faire on weekdays during the
SLVUSD school term. The route 79 serves Pajaro/East Lake. Route 34 had
the lowest weekday ridership average for entirety of FY17
* The weekend routes with the lowest ridership averages are routes 79 and 72.
o The route 79 serves Watsonville Hospital and Pinto Lake: the route 72 serves

Watsonville Hospital/Pinto Lake. Route 79 had the lowest weekend ridership
average for Q2 through Q4 of FY17.

IV.  FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

Revenue derived from passenger fares and passes is reflected in the FY17 operating
budget.

Q4 FY17 Ridership Report
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V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

There are no alternatives to consider.

Vi. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Quarterly System Ridership Summary for FY17 Q4 (Aprif 1 — June
30, 2017)

Attachment B; Quarterly Average Ridership by Route Report for FY17 Q4 (April 1
- June 30, 2017)

Prepared By: Cayla Hill, Administrative Specialist

Q4 FY17 Ridership Report
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VIl. APPROVALS:

iz
Barrow Emerson, \Zﬁz&u ) @}Mf/‘—ﬂ/\.

Planning and Development Manager

Approved as to fiscal impact: O/M w
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager J‘,da <,

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Q4 FY17 Ridership Report
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE QUARTERLY PROCUREMENT REPORT FOR 3%P

QUARTER OF FY18

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Quarterly Procurement Report

for the 3" quarter of FY18.

SUMMARY

e This staff report provides the Board with a Quarterly Procurement Report for the
3 quarter of FY18, covering the months of January through March.

e Each quarter staff will provide a Quarterly Procurement Report listing anticipated
procurements within the quarter.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to provide the Board of Directors an opportunity to
review and comment on upcoming procurements before they are ready for award.

Attachment A details the formal procurements the Purchasing Department is
planning on issuing during the 3™ quarter of FY18 (January through March).

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

See attached.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: FY18: 3" Quarter Anticipated Procurement Listing
Prepared by: Joan Jeffries, Administrative Specialist
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VI. APPROVALS:

Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager
Approved as to fiscal impact:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Quarterly Procurement Report
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DATE:

TO:

FROM:

Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

January 26, 2018 f i
Board of Directors smmacrz METRO

Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager

SUBJECT. ACCEPT AND FILE QUARTERLY ELECTRIC BUS PURCHASE

REPORT FOR 3%° QUARTER OF FY18

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Quarterly Electric Bus

Purchase Report for the 3" Quarter of FY18.

SUMMARY

On September 25, 2015 the Board of Directors authorized the CEO to seek
grant opportunites to add zero-emission buses to the Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District (METRO) fleet.

METRO was awarded funding for three 45’ Zero Emission Electric Over the
Road Coaches (OTRC) through the Low or No Emission Program (LowNo) in
2016.

Subject to resolving some technical and performance issues with the vehicle,
METRO anticipates executing a sole source contract with Build Your Dreams
(BYD) for the purchase of the three OTRC's.

METRO was awarded one 40’ Zero Emission Electric Bus for Watsonville
Downtown Circulator Service through the Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP) in 2016.

METRO entered into a joint procurement with Clemson Area Transit to
purchase the LCTOP bus.

On February 23, 2018 the Board will be asked to approve a contract with
Proterra for the purchase of one electric bus for use as a downtown circulator
in Watsonville.

The Watsonville Downtown Circulator bus is expected to be delivered in early
2019.

Tenatively, the three OTRC'’s are expected to be delivered by June of 2019.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Watsonville Downtown Circulator Bus — METRO will be purchasing the Proterra

Catalyst E2+ model, which has a range of 300 miles in normal conditions.
Purchase of this bus is contingent on it meeting California’s axle weight
requirements set for the in AB 1250.
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The Project Team has met with Proterra and begun working on the bus
configuration. The configuration sheets serve as build specifications and include
all of Santa Cruz METRO'’s specific fleet requirements such as type or
manufacturer of tires, wheelchair lift, destination sign, surveillance cameras, bike
racks, etc. The final configuration sheet is also used to price the bus, which is
needed to finalize the contract. Staff anticipates bringing the contract to the
Board of Directors for approval at its meeting on February 23, 2018. This bus is
expected to be delivered in early 2019. The contract, which was a joint
procurement with Clemson Area Transit, has an option to purchase up to nine
additional 40 ZEBs.

Three Over the Road Coaches — On November 13" and 14™ of 2017, BYD
brought a C-10 demonstration bus to Santa Cruz METRO. BYD has produced
only two prototypes of the C-10 model to date. The bus was loaded with people
and sandbags to replicated a full load and run on the Highway 17 Route in
regular commuter traffic. Unfortunately the bus was unable to keep up with the
flow of traffic, a major requirement in moving forward with this bus purchase. On
some stretches of the highway, the bus could only achieve 30-35 MPH. On
December 21, 2017 Santa Cruz METRO sent a letter to BYD outlining its
concerns with how the demo bus performed. A deadline of January 12, 2018
was set for their response, however, no response has been received. Staff is
meeting with the Project Management Consultant to determine what steps to
take next.

As a side note, Santa Cruz METRO has released consultant Al Pierce, the former
Maintenance Manager engaged to assist with fleet electrification, from his
consulting tasks related to this project. BYD offered him consulting work to assist
with their Field Services Group, which oversees quality control. Since this was
potentially a conflict of interest with our contract, but also in our interest to have
improved quality control at the plant should we move forward with a bus
purchase from BYD, it was determined that the best course of action was to
release him from our contract and revisit using his services after his work with
BYD is complete.

If technical and performance issues with the BYD C-10 coach cannot be resolved
in a timely manner, METRO may request a meeting with the FTA in April to
explore alternative bus purchase options.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

Funding for the three OTRC's and related charging equipment is provided by the
Federal LowNo program in the amount of $3,810,348 and a local match in the
amount of $1,126,164. These amounts represent the entire project budget,
which also includes other items such as training, consulting services and

Quarterly Electric Bus Purchase Report
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VI.

construction to install infrastructure. The local match funding sources are
PTMISEA and Cash Reserves/Alternative Fuel Credit.

Funding for the 40’ Watsonville Downtown Circulator bus is provided by the State
of California LCTOP program in the amount of $709,292, with a local match in
the amount of $357,216 provided by PTMISEA.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

This report is for information only and there are no alternatives to consider.

ATTACHMENTS

None

Prepared By: Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager

Quarterly Electric Bus Purchase Report
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VI. APPROVALS:

Erron Alvey, Purchasing Manager
Approved as to fiscal impact:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Quarterly Procurement Report

\1\ O
Al oeo for AG
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors sanracriz METRO
FROM: Isaac Holly, IT Manager

SUBJECT:. CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO ELERT &

ASSOCIATES FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES TO DEVELOP
SPECIFICATIONS FOR METRO’S VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
NOT TO EXCEED $20,300

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a contract with
Elert & Associates to develop specifications for METRO’s Video

Surveillance System in an amount not to exceed $20,300 for a One (1) year
period

SUMMARY

e The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has a need for the
design of a Video Surveillance System (VSS) at the Judy K. Souza (JKS)
Operations and the upgrade of the existing VSS at the Fueling facility.

e A formal request for proposals was conducted to solicit proposals from
qualified firms. Four (4) firms submitted proposals for METROQO's review.

e Afour (4)-member evaluation team composed of METRO staff reviewed and
evaluated the proposals, and is recommending an award to
Elert & Associates.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The current surveillance system located at the 1200B River St. Fueling facility is
approaching 10 years old and has reached the end of its product life cycle. In
addition, Electronic Security systems including a VSS were de-scoped from the
JKS Operations facility construction project located at 1200 River St. The reason
for this decision was that it would have delayed project closeout and the cost
would have been exorbitant based on quotes from existing subcontractors.

Both of these facilities are in need of site surveillance for security and as a
deterrent to criminal activities. Due to the specialized nature of VSS design,
METRO elected to seek the services of a qualified consulting firm to develop a
specification for a VSS at each of these facilities.

On August 31, 2017, METRO legally advertised and distributed Request for
Proposals (RFP) No. 17-05 to sixty six (66) firms and one hundred twenty four
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(124) DBE firms, posted notice on its website, and sent email notices to all
GovDelivery subscribers. On August 31, 2017, proposals were received and
opened from four (4) firms. Interviews were held with the top two (2) scoring
firms. Alist of these firms is provided in Attachment A. A four (4)-member
evaluation team composed of METRO staff has reviewed and evaluated the

proposals.

The evaluation team used the following criteria as contained in the Request for

Proposals:
Evaluation Criteria Points
Consultant’s gualifications and recent experience 30
Understanding of and technical approach to project requirements 30
Quality of relevant experience of offeror’s key staff 20
Experience with government agencies 15
References 15
Cost proposal 30
Total Points Possible 140

At the conclusion of the evaluation and selection process, it was determined that
Elert & Associates received the highest consensus ranking. Staff is therefore
recommending that the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a one-
year contract on behalf of METRO, with Elert & Associates to develop
specifications for METRO's video surveillance system at the JKS Operations and
Fueling facilities in an amount not to exceed $20,300. Contractor will provide all
services meeting all METRO'’s specifications and requirements of the contract.
Isaac Holly, IT Manager, will serve as the Contract Administrator and will ensure

contract compliance.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The base value of the contract is $20,300. This project is 100% funded by the
California Office of Emergency Services (Cal-OES) California Transit Security
Grant Program (CTSGP) and is budgeted in the FY18 Capital Budget under

budget code 514020-410045.

Design Specifications for VSS
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V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

e Choose to not proceed with the design, subsequent upgrade and install of a
surveillance system at the JKS Operations and Fueling facilities.

o Staff does not recommend this. Security and safety are of paramount
importance at METRO. A surveillance system for these facilities would
serve as a deterrent to criminal activities and add another layer of security
for METRO employees and assets.

VI.  ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: List of Responding Firms

Attachment B: Contract with Elert & Associates

Note: A full copy of the Contract is available on request.

Prepared By: Alex Strudley, Purchasing Agent

Design Specifications for VSS
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VIl. APPROVALS:

Isaac Holly, IT Manager /%

Approved as to fiscal impact: D/‘/‘(/@ O Iy
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager ) UM

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Design and Upgrade of VSS
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f f santacruz METRO

Responding Firms for RFP No. 17-05

For Consultant Services for Upgrade of METRO’s
Video Surveillance System

Received by August 31, at 5:00 PM

Elert & Associates

Transit Safety and Security Solutions, Inc.

IMEG

Cyberwatch Security Communications, Inc.

11-09A.1
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Attachment B

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR UPGRADE OF METRO’S VIDEQ SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM

(17-03)

THIS CONTRACT is made etfective on January 29, 2018 between the SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“Santa Cruz METRO"), a political subdivision of the State of California, and
Elert & Associates (“Consultant™).

1.01

1.04

RECITALS 1
Santa Cruz METRO’s Primary Objective

Santa Cruz METRO is a public entity whose primary objective is providing public transportation and which
has its principal office at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060.

Santa Cruz METRO’s Need for Consultant Services For Upgrade of METRO’s Video Surveillance System

Santa Cruz METRO has the need for Consultant Services For Upgrade of METRQO’s Video Surveillance
System. In order to obtain these services, Santa Cruz METRO issued a Request for Proposals, dated
July 14, 2017, setting forth specifications for such services. The Request for Proposals is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A.

Consultant’s Proposal

Consultant is an individual qualitied to provide Consultant Services For Upgrade of METRO’s Video
Surveillance System and whose principal place of business is 140 Third Street, Stillwater, MN 55082.
Pursuant to the Request for Proposals issued by Santa Cruz METRO, Consultant submitted a proposal for
Consultant Services For Upgrade of METRO’s Video Surveillance System, which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit B

Selection of Consultant and Intent of Contract
On December 1, 2017, Santa Cruz METRO selected Consultant as the offeror whose proposal was most

advantageous to Santa Cruz METRO to provide the Consultant Services For Upgrade of METROs Video
Surveillance System described herein. This Contract is intended to fix the provisions of these services.

Santa Cruz METRO and Consultant agree as follows:

}\..2'

INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE LAW

Documents Incorporated in this Contract

The documents listed below are attached to this Contract and by reference made a part hereof. This is an
integrated Contract. This writing constitutes the final expression of the parties” Contract, and it is a
complete and exclusive statement of the provisions of that Contract, except for written amendments, if any,
made after the date of this Contract in accordance with Section 11.15 of the General Conditions (o the
Contract.
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3.01

Attachment B

A, Exhibit A

Santa Cruz METRO’s “Request for Proposals” dated July 14, 2017, including Addendum(s) No(s). |
dated August 9, 2017.
B. Exhibit I

Consultant’s Proposal to Santa Cruz METRO for Consultant Services For Upgrade of METRO’s
Video Surveillance System, signed by Consultant and dated September 14, 2017.

Conflicts

Where in conflict, the provisions of this writing supersede those of the above-referenced documents,
Exhibits A and B. Where in conflict, the provisions of Exhibit A supersede Exhibit B.

Recitals

The Recitals set forth in Article 1 are part of this Contract.

DEFINITIONS
General
The terms below (or pronouns in place of them) have the following meaning in the Contract:

3.01.01 CONSULTANT - The Consultant selected by Santa Cruz METRO for this project in accordance
with the Request for Proposals issued July 14, 2017.

3.01.02 CONSULTANT’S STAFF - Employees of Consultant,
3.01.03 CONTRACT - The Contract consists of this document, the attachments incorporated herein in

accordance with Article 2, and any written amendments made in accordance with Part IV, Section
11.15 of, the General Conditions to the Contract.

3.01.04 DAYS - Calendar days.

3.01.05 OFFEROR — Consultant whose proposal was accepted under the terms and conditions of the
Request for Proposals issued July 14, 2017.

3.01.06 PROVISION - Any term, agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, or other stipulation in the Contract that defines or otherwise controls, establishes, or
limits the performance required or permitted by either party.

3.01.07 SCOPE OF WORK (GR “WORK?”) - The entire obligation under the Contract, including, without

limitation, all labor, equipment, materials, supplies, transportation, services, and other work
products and expenses, express or implied, in the Contract.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

Term

The term of this Contract will be for a period not to exceed one (1) year and shall commence upon the
execution of the Contract by Santa Cruz METRO.
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Attachment B

Upon satislaciory performance of services, Santa Craz METRO may extend this agreement beyond the
initial term when mutually agreed to in writing by the parties.

COMPENSATION

Terms of Payment

Santa Cruz METRO shall compensate Consultant in an amount not to exceed the amounts/rates agreed
upon by Santa Cruz METRO. Consultant’s hourly labor rates shall include all direct labor, taxes, overhead,
insurance, profit, employee benefits, and other costs and expenses incurred by the Consultant necesss
the performance of all the services called for under this Agreement. Santa Cruz METRQ shall reasonably
determine whether work has been successfully performed for purposes of payment. Compensation shall be
made within thirty (30) days of Santa Cruz METRO’s written approval of Consultant’s written invoice for
said work. Consultant understands and agrees that if they exceed the $20,300.00 maximum amount
payable under this Contract, they do so at their own risk.

wry for

Invoices

Consultant shall submit invoices with a purchase order number provided by Santa Cruz METRO on a
monthly basis. Consultant’s invoices shall include detailed records showing actual time devoted, work
accompiished, date work accomplished, personnel used, and amount billed per hour. Expenscs shall only
be billed it allowed under the Contract.

Said invoice records shall be kept up-to-date at all times and shall be available for inspection by Santa Cruz
METRO (or any grantor of Santa Cruz METRO, including, without limitation, any State or Federal agency
providing project funding or reimbursement) at any time for any reason upon demand for not less than {our
(4) years after the date of expiration or termination of the Contract. Under penalty of law, Consultant
represents that all amounts billed to Santa Cruz METRO are (1) actually incurred; (2) reasonable in
amount; (3) related to this Contract; and (4) necessary for performance of the project.

NOTICES
All notices under this Contract shall be deemed duly given upon delivery, if delivered by hand, or three (3)
days alter posting, if sent by registered mail, receipt requested, to a party hereto at the address hereinunder
set forth or to such other address as a party may designate by notice pursuant hereto.

Santa Cruz METRO

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District

110 Vernon Street

Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Attention: Alex Clifford, CEO

CONSULTANT

Elert & Associates

140 Third Street

Stillwater, MN 55082

Attention: Gary Elert

11-09B.3
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7. ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

The parties agree that this Contract, agreements anciflary (o this Contract, and related documents to be
entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of a party is delivered by scanned
image as an attachment to elecrronic mail. Such scanned signature must be treated in all respects as having
the same effect as an original signature. Each party further agrees that this Contract may be executed in
two or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument,

jed

AUTHORITY
Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract and the person signing this

Contract on behalf of each has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract. Each
perly I
party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it.

Signed on

Santa Cruz METRO —
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT

Alex Clifford, CEQ/General Manager

Consultant —

Flert & Associates §

Gary Elert, President

Approved as to Form:

Julie Sherman, General Counsel i

11-09B.4



Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Barrow Emerson, Planning/Development Manager

SUBJECT. CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO CASEY PRINTING,

INC. FOR PRINTING OF HEADWAYS BUS RIDER’S GUIDE NOT TO
EXCEED $235,783

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1) That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a contract with
Casey Printing, Inc. for Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide in an
amount not to exceed $235,783 for a three (3)-year period, with options
to extend the contract for two (2) additional two (2)-year terms for a total
contract term of seven (7) years.

That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute future
amendments with Casey Printing Inc, for the options to extend,
increasing the contract total for each option year as required, not to

exceed a total value of $550,161 for the full seven (7) years.

SUMMARY

e The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has a need for Printing
of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide.

e Aformal invitation for bids was conducted to solicit bids from qualified firms.
Three (3) firms submitted bids for METRO’s review.

e METRO staff reviewed and evaluated the bids, and is recommending an
award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Casey Printing, Inc.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Headways Bus Rider’s Guide is used by our ridership to plan their bus trips.
METRO prints and distributes the publication 4 times a year at various locations
throughout the district. Folger Graphics is METRO’s current provider for these
services; however, this contract will expire on January 31, 2018, with no further
options to renew.

On November 9, 2007, METRO issued an Invitation for Bids No. 18-07 for
Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide. METRO legally advertised and
distributed Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 18-07 to twenty-nine (29) firms, posted
notice on its website, and sent email notices to all GovDelivery subscribers.

On December 7, 2017, bids were received and opened from three (3) firms. A list
of these firms and their bid prices are provided below. Purchasing staff has
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VI.

evaluated the bids and has determined Casey Printing, Inc. to be the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder.

Bidding Firm Bid Price

Casey Printing, Inc. $78,594.45 per year
Folger Graphics $82,404.44 per year
Consolidated Printers, Inc. $181,727.00 per year

Staff is recommending the following actions: 1) that the Board of Directors
authorize the CEO to execute a three (3)-year contract on behalf of METRO with
Casey Printing, Inc. for Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide in an amount not
to exceed $235,783; and 2) that the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to
execute future contract extensions with Casey Printing, Inc (for two (2) additional
two (2)-year options), for a total anticipated contract value not to exceed
$550,161 and a total term not to exceed seven (7) years.

Contractor will provide all services meeting all METRO'’s specifications and
requirements of the contract. Barrow Emerson will serve as the Contract
Administrator and will ensure contract compliance.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The base value of the contract is $235,783 for the first three (3) years. Should all
two (2) options be exercised, the total seven (7)-year value of the contract is
anticipated to be $550,161. Funds to support this contract are included in the
FY18-FY20 Operating budget in the Planning & Development account #504215-
1600. The Department Manager will be responsible for budgeting this expense
each fiscal year.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

The alternative to this multiple-year contract would be to procure these services
for each individual project request. This approach would not only be inefficient in
terms of procurement response and internal processing time, but would also
involve paying top dollar for low-volume needs, and is not recommended.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: Bid form detail submitted by Casey Printers, Inc.
Attachment B: Contract with Casey Printing, Inc.

Note: A full copy of the Contract is available on request.

Prepared By: Barrow Emerson, Planning & Development Manager

Printing of Headways
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Vil. APPROVALS:

Barrow Emerson,
Planning/Development Manager

Approved as to fiscal impact:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Printing of Headways
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Attachment A

PART I1

BID FORM

The lowest bid is comprised of the Extended Price of all items specified in the bid form.

BIDDER TO FILL OUT THE BID FORM BELOW:

Item
No.

Item Description

Unit
Price ($)

Quantity

(production

runs per year)

Extended
Price

Tax
9.0 %)

Total Price

BASE BID: Run of 18,000 copies, quote
price for 30# recycled newsprint and soy-

based ink with grey-screen and only color\)ﬁ 50‘-}0‘ oD

front page and middle tear out, 80 pages.

(18,000 units x 80 pages=1,440,000 total pages)

4

20,160.00

\BIH.40

$219474.40

OPTION PRICING: Run of 15,000
copies, quote price for 30# recycled
newsprint and soy-based ink with grey-
screen and only color front page and
middle tear out, 80 pages.

(15,000 copies x 80 pages=1,200,000 total pages)

# 453000

A4

IBNZ2000

\w2D.20

OPTION PRICING: Run of 20,000
copies, quote price for 30# recycled
newsprint and soy-based ink with grey-
screen and only color front page and
middle tear out, 80 pages.

(20,000 copies x 80 pages=1,600,000 total pages)

¥ PHZ50

2170001

1453.00

b 2305300

OPTION PRICING: Cost for an
additional 6,000 copies, placed after
delivery of 18,000 run of 30# recycled
newsprint and soy-based ink with grey-
screen and only color front page and
middle tear out, 80 pages.

3

(20,000 copies x 80 pages=1,600,000 total pages)

005,00

148D

\01820

$12,058.20

OPTION PRICING: Cost per single
additional interior color page to replace
grayscale page, by special request.

\H5.00

1 page

\Us.0D

15.00

158.05

Total

76,59445

Part I1-2
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Attachment B

CONTRACT FOR PRINTING OF HEADWAYS BUS RIDER’S GUIDE (18-07)

THIS CONTRACT is made effective on February 1, 2018 between the SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“Santa Cruz METRO?”), a political subdivision of the State of California, and

Casey Printing, Inc. (“Contractor”).

RECITALS

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

Santa Cruz METRO’s Primary Objective

Santa Cruz METRO is a public entity whose primary objective is providing public transportation and
which has its principal office at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060.

Santa Cruz METRO’s Need for Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide

Santa Cruz METRO requires the Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide to be used for standard
purposes. In order to obtain said Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide, Santa Cruz METRO issued
an Invitation for Bids, dated November 9, 2017, setting forth specifications for such Printing of
Headways Bus Rider’s Guide. The Invitation for Bids is attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference as Exhibit A.

Contractor’s Bid Form

Contractor is a supplier of for Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide desired by Santa Cruz METRO
and whose principal place of business is 398 E. San Antonio Drive, King City, CA 93930. Pursuant to
the Invitation for Bids issued by Santa Cruz METRO, Contractor submitted a bid for Provision of said
Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference
as Exhibit B.

Selection of Contractor and Intent of Contract

On December 07, 2017, Santa Cruz METRO selected Contractor as the lowest responsive, responsible
bidder to provide said Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide. The purpose of this Contract is to set
forth the provisions of this procurement.

Contractor and Supplier Synonymous

For the purposes of this Contract, the terms “contractor” and “supplier” are synonymous.

Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor agree as follows:

2.

INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE LAW

2.01

Documents Incorporated in This Contract
The documents listed below are attached to this Contract and by reference made a part hereof. This is
an integrated Contract. This writing constitutes the final expression of the parties’ Contract, and it is a
complete and exclusive statement of the provisions of that Contract, except for written amendments, if
any, made after the date of this Contract in accordance with Section 12.15 of the General Conditions to
the Contract.

a) Exhibit A

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’s “Invitation for Bids” dated November 9, 2017.

Page 1 of 4
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b) Exhibit B (Bid Form)

Contractor’s Bid Form to Santa Cruz METRO for Printing of Headways Bus Rider’s Guide,
signed by Contractor and dated December 1, 2017.

2.02 Conflicts
Where in conflict, the provisions of this writing supersede those of the above-referenced documents,
Exhibits A and B. Where in conflict, the provisions of Exhibit A supersede Exhibit B.

2.03 Recitals
The Recitals set forth in Article 1 are part of this Contract.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

3.01 General
Contractor shall perform work under this Contract at such times to enable it to meet the time schedules
specified in the Specifications Section of the IFB. The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays
caused by force majeure events described in Section 3 of the General Conditions of the Contract.

3.02 Term
The term of this Contract commences on the execution of the Contract and shall remain in force for a
base term of three (3) years. At the option of Santa Cruz METRO, this Contract may be renewed for
two (2) additional two (2) year terms under the same conditions and prices, subject to any adjustments
allowed under the Contract.

COMPENSATION

4.01 Terms of Payment
Following timely delivery of materials and Santa Cruz METRO’s acceptance thereof, Santa Cruz
METRO agrees to pay Contractor in accordance with the unit prices set forth in Exhibit B within thirty
(30) days thereof. Contractor understands and agrees that if they exceed the $235,783.35 maximum
amount payable under this Contract, it does so at its own risk.

4.02 Invoices

Contractor shall submit invoices with a purchase order number provided by Santa Cruz METRO on a
quarterly basis. Contractor’s invoices shall include detailed records showing actual materials produced
and delivered. Costs exceeding those set forth in Exhibit B will not be paid.

Said invoice records shall be kept up-to-date at all times and shall be available for inspection by Santa
Cruz METRO (or any grantor of Santa Cruz METRO, including, without limitation, any State or
Federal agency providing project funding or reimbursement) at any time for any reason upon demand
for not less than four (4) years after the date of expiration or termination of the Contract. Under penalty
of law, Contractor represents that all amounts billed to Santa Cruz METRO are (1) actually incurred;
(2) reasonable in amount; (3) related to this Contract; and (4) necessary for performance of the services,
No expenses shall be paid by Santa Cruz METRO unless specifically allowed by this Contract.

Page 2 of 4
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NOTICES

All notices under this Contract shall be deemed duly given upon delivery, if delivered by hand, or three (3)
days after posting, if sent by registered mail, receipt requested, to a party hereto at the address hereinunder set
forth, or to such other address as a party may designate by notice pursuant hereto.

Santa Cruz METRO

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
110 Vernon Street

Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Attention: General Manager

CONTRACTOR

Casey Printing, Inc.
398 E. San Antonio Drive
King City, CA 93930

Attention: Mr. Richard Casey

Page 3 of 4
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6. ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

The parties agree that this Contract, agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents to be
entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of a party is delivered by scanned
image as an attachment to electronic mail. Such scanned signature must be treated in all respects as having
the same effect as an original signature. Each party further agrees that this Contract may be executed in two
or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

7. AUTHORITY
Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract and the person signing this

Contract on behalf of each has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract. Each
party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by it.

Signed on

Santa Cruz METRO —
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Contractor —
Casey Printing, Inc.

Richard Casey, President

Approved as to Form:

Julie A. Sherman, General Counsel

Page 4 of 4
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f j
TO: Board of Directors sanracriz METRO
FROM: Angela Aitken, DBE Liaison Officer, Finance Manager

SUBJECT: A SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT ON THE STATUS OF METRO’S

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors receive a Semi-Annual Report on the status of

METRO'’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program

SUMMARY

e As a recipient of federal funds, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
(METRO) participates in the federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
(DBE) Program as specified in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26
(49 CFR 26).

e The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requires METRO to recalculate its
DBE goal triennially and to report goal attainment semi-annually as a
requirement to receive federal funds.

e METRO'’s FFY15-17 goal for DBE participation is 1.93% of all federally
funded procurements with competitive contract bidding opportunities.

e A Semi-Annual report is required to be provided to the Board in concurrence
with the FTA reporting schedule and per METRO'’s DBE policy.

e From April 1, 2017 — September 30, 2017, METRO’s DBE attainment for
contracts awarded, payments on ongoing contracts, and payments on
completed contracts was 15.71%, 0.00%, and 1.70%, respectively.

e Stalff is providing this status report on the DBE Program for the last six
months of Federal Fiscal Year 2017, April 1, 2017 — September 30, 2017

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

The Department of Transportation established a Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) Program in 1980 to ensure that firms competing for federally
funded contracts are not subject to unlawful discrimination. DBEs, as defined by
the US Department of Transportation, are for-profit small business concerns
where socially and economically disadvantaged individuals own at least a 51%
interest and also control management and daily business operations. African
Americans, Hispanics, Native Americans, Asian-Pacific and Subcontinent Asian
Americans, and women are presumed to be socially and economically
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disadvantaged. Other individuals can also qualify as socially and economically
disadvantaged on a case-by-case basis.

The FTA requires each qualified recipient of more than $250,000 annually in
federal funds to implement a DBE program, recalculate a DBE goal triennially,
and report its goal attainment semi-annually, as specified by 49 CFR 26. METRO
received approximately $6.9 million from the FTA in FFY17 and, therefore, must
maintain a DBE Program.

It is important to acknowledge the restrictions placed on DBE goal setting,
attainment, and reporting:

e Only competitively biddable contracts with federal funding are counted in the
procurement opportunities in which DBEs can participate.

o0 The majority of METRO’s FTA funding is used to pay for internal labor
costs and fringe benefits, and is not required to be monitored for the DBE
program.

e Several large expenses have no competitive contract opportunities:

o Utilities, leases and rent payments, subscription services, membership
costs, travel.

e Only certified DBEs can be included for setting goals and measuring
attainment.

0 Many businesses are owned by minorities and women, but not all of these
owners register as DBEs in the statewide program.

METRO'’s current DBE goal is 1.93% as seen in METRO’s DBE semi-annual
report for the period covering April 1, 2017 — September 30, 2017 provided as
Attachment A. During this reporting period, METRQO’s DBE attainment for
contracts awarded, payments on ongoing contracts, and payments on completed
contracts is 15.71%, 0.00%, and 1.70%, respectively.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The DBE Program has direct expenses of less than $850 for publishing ads and
public hearing notices. Failure to update the goal and submit semi-annual reports
would jeopardize METRO's receipt of over $6.9 million in federal financial
assistance in FFY17.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

There are no alternatives. Receiving the semi-annual report is a legal
requirement connected to METRO receiving federal financial assistance and

Semi-annual DBE Report Dec 2017
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Staff is required to provide this information to inform the Board of this important
program per METRO'’s DBE policy, Art. 1ll 8 3.304(G).

VI.  ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: December 1, 2017 DBE Semi-Annual Report (April 1, 2017 —
September 30, 2017)

Prepared by: Cayla Hill, Administrative Specialist

Semi-annual DBE Report Dec 2017
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Vil. APPROVALS:

Approved as to fiscal impact:
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Semi-annual DBE Report Dec 2017

(e (Lt

/
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December 1, 2017 DBE Semi-Annual Report (April 1, 2017 - September 30, 2017)

UNIFORM REPORT OF DBE COMMITMENTS/AWARDS AND PAYMENTS

FTA Section

**Please refer to the instruction sheet for directions on filling out this form**

-

Submitted to (check only one)

[ 1FHWA [ 1FAA

[ X ] FTA - Recipient ID Number 1622

N

Grant Number(s) (FTA Recipients):

Federal Fiscal year in which reporting
period falls:

4. Date This Report Submitted:

ul

Reporting Period:

[ ] Report due for period Oct 1-Mar 31

[ X ] Report due for period April 1-Sep 30

[ ]FAA annual report due Dec 1

(=)

Name and address of Recipient:

Recipient or subrecipient completing this form

~

Annual DBE Goal(s):

Race Conscious Projection:

[973%

[ovERALL Goal: 1.93%

Awards/Commitments this Reporting Period

A B C D E F G H |
AWARDS/COMMITMENTS Total Federal Total Number Total to DBEs Total to Total to Total to DBEs/Race Total to Total to |Percentage of
MADE DURING THIS Share Dollars (dollars) DBEs DBEs/Race Conscious (number) DBEs/Race | DBEs/Race | total dollars
number) | Conscious Neutral Neutral to DBEs
REPORTING PERIOD (number) o " !
(dollars) (dollars) (number)
(Total contracts and subcontracts
committed during this reporting
period)
Prime contracts awarded this period
(Standard Agreements) $760,275 8 $119,427 $119,427 3 15.71%
Subcontracts awarded/committed
this period (3rd Party Contracts) S0 0| $ - S - 0 0.00%
o[ToraL I S 115427.00 s
A | B | C D E | F
BREAKDOWN BY Total to DBE (dollar amount) Total to DBE (number)
ETHNICITY & GENDER Women Men Total Women Men Total
11|Black American S - S - S - 0 0 0
12 [Hispanic American S - $119,427 | $ 119,427.00 0 3 3
13| Native American S - $ - $ - 0 0 0
14|Asian-Pacific American S - S - S - 0 0 0
15[Subcontinent Asian Americans S - S - S - 0 0 0
17|Non-Minority S - $ - $ - 0 0 0
17|TOTAL S - S 119,427.00 | $  119,427.00 0 3 3
Payments Made this Reporting Period
A B C D E F
PAYMENTS ON ONGOING Total Number of Total Dollars Paid Total Total Payments to DBE firms Total Number of DBE firms | Percent to
CONTRACTS Contracts Number of Paid DBEs
c Contracts
with DBEs
18 Prime and subcontracts currently in
progress 1 s 111,947.00 1 s - 0 0.00%
A B C D E
TOTAL PAYMENTS ON Number of Contracts Completed [ Total Dollar Value of Contracts| DBE Participation Needed to Meet Total DBE Participation Percent to
CONTRACTS COMPLETED THIS Completed Goal (Dollars) (Dollars) DBEs
D
REPORTING PERIOD
19|Race Conscious
20|Race Neutral 3 S 3,798,348.00 S 64,536.00 1.70%
21|Totals 3 S 3,798,348.00 S 64,536.00 1.70%
22|Submitted by: Cayla Hill 23. Signature: 24. Phone Number: (831) 420-2581
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f j
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Jolene Church, Human Resources Manager

SUBJECT. APPROVAL OF SEIU MECHANIC SERIES WAGE SURVEY RESULTS

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors approve the SEIU Mechanic series wage survey
results

SUMMARY

e In December of 2016, Service Employees International Union (SEIU) formally
requested a salary survey of the Mechanics job series as per SEIU
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Article 8.7.1.

e In June of 2017, Angela Aitken, the Interim Human Resources Manager and
Caroline Hawkins, the Provisional Assistant Resources Manager, met with
representatives from the SEIU and agreed upon the salary study approach.

e In July 2017, the study was extended until the end of August 2017.

e Preliminary wage survey results were provided to the SEIU representatives on
August 28, 2017 for review and input.

e In October 2017, when Jolene Church, the new Human Resources Manager
came on board, the study was redone after discussions with SEIU
representatives.

e On November 6, 2017, the Final Mechanics Series Classification and
Compensation Study was provided to the SEIU and both parties were in
agreement with the survey results and recommendations.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Article 8.7.1 of the SEIU MOU provides provisions for reclassifications and salary
studies. In accordance with this article, in December 2016, the SEIU formally
requested a survey of the Mechanic Series wage study.

In June 2016, the Interim Human Resources Manager, the Provisional Assistant
Human Resources Manager and SEIU’s representatives agreed upon components
of the salary study. It was agreed at that time that no benchmark positions existed
within the series and no benchmark would be established. It was also agreed that
compaction between positions in the ladder and 5% difference between steps on
the wage scale would be not be considered. The focus was on market equity and
bringing Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit Distrfict (METRO) to 95% of the median
minimum salary within the established compensation market basket.

11-12.1
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The agreed upon eleven comparable (compensation market basket) agencies are
as follows: Santa Cruz County, Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST), City of Santa
Cruz, Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (AC Transit), Santa Clara Valley
Transit Authority (VTA), San Joaquin Regional Transit Authority, Contra Costa
Transit, Golden Gate Transit, Riverside Transit, San Mateo County Transit
(SamTrans), and Santa Barbara Transit.

In October 2017, a comprehensive salary study of the Mechanic Series (in
agreement with career ladder grouping Article 8.5.1) was conducted. Five (5)
positions were reviewed:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Fleet Maintenance Supervisor
Lead Mechanic

Mechanic IlI

Mechanic Il

Mechanic |

The study was conducted following best practices in compensation analysis, which
included:

A comprehensive review of duties listed in the job specifications
80% or better match basis for alike positions

Consideration of autonomy, level of competency required, reporting structure,
education and years of experience, special certifications, and exempt/non-
exempt status

Phone interviews with agency representatives or email exchanges to ensure a
good match for each position

Information provided by our agency’s incumbents, supervisors, and union
representatives regarding the classification

Use of the agency’s latest job specifications and salary listings

The results of the compensation analysis indicate that several positions were
slightly under market based on the 95% market median formula applied. The
results are as follows:

1)
2)
3)

Lead Mechanic 5.55% under market
Mechanic Il 6.51% under market
Mechanic Il 4.06% under market

Conversely, the analysis data also provided an indication that several positions
were above market within the series, specifically the top and bottom of the series.

SEIU Article 8.7.1 Reclassifications and Wage Surveys
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VI.

1) Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 6.83% above market
2) Mechanic | 7.46% above market

It was deduced that the practice outlined in the MOU, specifically Articles of 8.7
and 8.2.3 for “one off” compensation studies have contributed to this misalignment
in compensation. Standard best practice is to evaluate job series compensation
periodically (between 3-5 years) unless extreme economic changes to market
conditions occur (i.e. recession, economic boom, etc.). This typically occurs
concurrent to collective bargaining.

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the SEIU Mechanic Wage
Survey results, which include:

Resetting the following salaries: Lead Mechanic, Mechanic Il, and Mechanic Il to
95% of median per study results (See Attachment A: Mechanic Salary Survey
2017).

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

METRO's Fleet Department currently has 13.0 FTEs that are impacted by the
results of this study. As per the provisions outlined in the SEIU MOU Article 8.7.1,
any impact to employee salaries resulting from a wage survey requested in
December will become effective July 1%

This represents an additional $60,000 in salaries for the Fleet Department in FY18.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

Reject the suggested wage survey. Staff does not recommend this action as the
agreement between METRO and the SEIU provides for such wage surveys and
may help METRO attract and retain personnel.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Mechanic Salary Survey 2017
Attachment B: Revised Salary Schedule for VMU Effective June 15, 2017
Attachment C: Revised Salary Schedule for VMU Effective June 14, 2018

Prepared By: Jolene E. Church, Human Resources Manager

SEIU Article 8.7.1 Reclassifications and Wage Surveys
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VI. APPROVALS

Jolene E. Church, HR Manager %ﬂéé@{

Approved as to fiscal impact:
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager ,4%/////
&= T

SEIU Article 8.7.1 Reclassifications and Wage Surveys
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO EXECUTE A5™

AMENDMENT EXTENDING THE CONTRACT WITH KIMBALL
MIDWEST FOR FASTENERS, ELECTRICAL TERMINALS AND
MISCELLANEOQOUS ITEMS

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a 5" amendment
extending the contract for one year with Kimball Midwest for Fasteners,

Electrical Terminals and Miscellaneous Items, increasing the contract total
by $30,000 for the additional one-year period, thereby increasing the total
contract authority from $125,000 to $155,000.

SUMMARY

e The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has a contract with
Midwest Motor Supply d/b/a Kimball Midwest for Fasteners, Electrical
Terminals and Miscellaneous Items that will expire on January 31, 2018.

¢ Kimball Midwest has requested no changes for the new contract period.

e Kimball Midwest has performed its duties very well under this contract, and
therefore a one-year contract extension is recommended.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

METRO’s Maintenance department requires a wide variety of fasteners and
electric terminals for use in repairing revenue and non-revenue fleets, as well as
in facilities repairs. Through its participation in Regional Transit Coordinating
Council (RTCC) procurements, on February 1, 2013 METRO entered into a
contract with Kimball Midwest for Fasteners, Electrical Terminals and
Miscellaneous Items. This contract is due to expire on January 31, 2018.

If authorized by the Board, this 5™ Amendment will be the last extension of this
contract that METRO will execute. Either a competitive procurement will be
conducted before this extension expires a year from now, or else METRO will
issue blanket purchase orders for fasteners and electric terminals for the
Maintenance departments that require these items.
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VI.

Per Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager, over the past year the quality of
service provided by Kimball Midwest has been very good. Kimball Midwest has
reviewed the contract and requested no changes.

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a 5™
amendment to the contract with Kimball Midwest to extend the term of the
contract to January 31, 2019, and to increase the contract total by $30,000.
Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager, will continue to serve as the Contract
Administrator and will ensure contract compliance.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

This contract has a total not to exceed of $125,000. Additional funds in an
amount of $30,000 are requested for approval at this time. The new contract
total not to exceed would be $155,000.

Funds to support this contract are included in the Fleet Maintenance FY18 &
FY19 Parts & Supplies (Non-Inv) (504421) Operating Budgets.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

e Do not renew this contract. Staff does not recommend this option, as
participating in RTCC joint procurements for commodities that are commonly
used by RTCC member agencies ensures better pricing than METRO could
likely negotiate on its own.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Renewal confirmation from Kimball Midwest
Attachment B: Fifth Amendment to the Contract with Kimball Midwest
Prepared By: Joan Jeffries, Administrative Specialist

Contract Extension with Kimball Midwest
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VIl. APPROVALS:

Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

o g ;
Approved as to fiscal impact: [ ) 1_ /] LS(N
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager H/ 'V\/TE‘LZ?, C / /@M

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager 7#%///

Contract Extension with Kimball Midwest

11-13.3
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Attachment A

From: Basinger. Scott

To: Joan Jeffries

Cc: Kristof, Yvonne

Subject: RE: Contract No. 13-17 for Fasteners, Electrical Terminals and Misc. Items - Extension Request
Date: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 12:34:32 PM

No, we will be able to hold that pricing for this for the additional 12 months.

Scott Basinger
Marketing Services Manager

scott.basinger@kimballmidwest.com
Direct Phone - 614.951.2176

From: Joan Jeffries [mailto:JJeffries@scmtd.com]

Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 3:14 PM

To: Basinger, Scott <scott.basinger@kimballmidwest.com>

Cc: Kristof, Yvonne <yvonne.kristof @kimballmidwest.com>

Subject: RE: Contract No. 13-17 for Fasteners, Electrical Terminals and Misc. Items - Extension
Request

Wonderful, thank you, Scott!
Would you be requesting any changes to the current pricing?

-Joan

From: Basinger, Scott [mailto:scott.basinger@kimballmidwest.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 12:11 PM

To: Joan Jeffries
Cc: Kristof, Yvonne
Subject: RE: Contract No. 13-17 for Fasteners, Electrical Terminals and Misc. Items - Extension Request

Joan,

My sincerest apologies for not getting back with you. Kimball Midwest would be happy to extend
our agreement for another year based on the dates written in your letter.

Please forward on any documents that need to be executed and I'll work with Yvonne to expedite
those getting returned to you.

Scott Basinger
Marketing Services Manager

scott.basinger@kimballmidwest.com
Direct Phone - 614.951.2176

From: Joan Jeffries [mailto:JJeffries@scmtd.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 13, 2017 2:57 PM

To: Basinger, Scott <scott.basinger@kimballmidwest.com>

11-13A.1
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Attachment B

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT
FIFTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 13-17
FOR FASTENERS, ELECTRICAL TERMINALS AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

This Fifth Amendment to Contract No. 13-17 for Fasteners, Electrical Terminals and
Miscellaneous Items is made effective February 1, 2018 between the Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District (“Santa Cruz METRO”), a political subdivision of the State of California, and
Midwest Motor Supply d/b/a Kimball Midwest (“Contractor”).

I. RECITALS

1.1 Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor entered into a Contract for Fasteners, Electrical
Terminals and Miscellaneous Items (“Contract”) on February 1, 2013.

1.2 The Contract allows for amendment upon mutual written consent.

1.3 Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor desire to amend the Contract to extend the
Contract term and to increase the Contract total not-to-exceed amount.

Therefore, Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor amend the Contract as follows:

II. TERM
2.1 Article 3.02 is replaced in its entirety by the following:
The term of this Contract shall be from February 1, 2013 to January 31, 2019.

Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor may extend the term of this Contract at any
time for any reason upon mutual written consent.

III. COMPENSATION
3.1 Article 4.01 is amended to include the following language:

Under the terms of the Fifth Amendment, the Contract total not-to-exceed amount
is increased by $30,000.

The new Contract total not-to-exceed amount is $155,000. Contractor understands
and agrees that if it exceeds the $155,000 maximum amount payable under this
Contract, it does so at its own risk.

IV. REMAINING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

4.1 All other provisions of the Contract that are not affected by this Amendment shall
remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

11-13B.1
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V. ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

5.1 The parties agree that this Contract, agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related
documents to be entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the
signature of a party is delivered by scanned image as an attachment to electronic mail.
Such scanned signature must be treated in all respects as having the same effect as an
original signature. Each party further agrees that this Contract may be executed in two
or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

VI. AUTHORITY

6.1 Article 6 is amended to include the following language:

Each party has full power to enter into and perform this Fifth Amendment to the
Contract and the person signing this Fifth Amendment on behalf of each has been
properly authorized and empowered to enter into it. Each party further
acknowledges that it has read this Fifth Amendment to the Contract, understands it,

and agrees to be bound by it.

Signed on

Santa Cruz METRO -
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN
TRANSIT DISTRICT

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Contractor —
MIDWEST MOTOR SUPPLY d/b/a
KIMBALL MIDWEST

Pat McCurdy, President

Approved as to Form:

Julie Sherman, General Counsel

11-13B.2



Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors savacaz METRO
FROM: Eddie E. Benson, Maintenance Manager

SUBJECT. CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO TECHNOLOGY

INTERNATIONAL, INC. FOR PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF ONE (1)
TOW TRACTOR NOT TO EXCEED $53,415

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a contract with
Technology International, Inc. for Purchase and Delivery of One (1) Tow

Tractor in an amount not to exceed $53,415

SUMMARY

e The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has a need for a new
Tow Tractor.

e A competitive procurement was conducted to solicit bids from qualified firms.
Seven (7) firms submitted bids for METROQO's review.

e Staff has reviewed all submitted bids and is recommending that the Board of
Directors authorize a contract with Technology International, Inc.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

On October 23, 2017, METRO legally advertised and distributed Invitation for
Bids (IFB) No. 17-13 to twenty (20) firms, posted notice on its website, and sent
email notices to all GovDelivery subscribers. On November 22, 2017, bids were
received and opened from seven (7) firms. Alist of firms and a summary of the
bids received are provided in Attachment A. Purchasing staff has reviewed all
submitted bids. Technology International, Inc. has been determined to be the
lowest responsible bidder whose bid is responsive to all the requirements of the
IFB.

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a
contract on behalf of METRO that shall remain in force until the expiration of the
Tow Tractor’s Manufacturer’s standard 2 year/2000 hour warranty period with
Technology International, Inc. for Purchase and Delivery of One (1) Tow Tractor
in an amount not to exceed $53,415. Contractor will provide all equipment and
materials meeting all METRO’s specifications and requirements of the contract.
Eddie E. Benson, Maintenance Manager, will serve as the Contract Administrator
and will ensure contract compliance.

11-14.1



Board of Directors
January 26, 2018
Page 2 of 3

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The value of the contract is $53,415. The funding source to support this contract
is included in the FY18 Capital Budgets, account number 140002-514070, using
FY14 FTA5339A grant funds.

V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

None

VI.  ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: Summary of Bids Received

Attachment B: Contract with Technology International, Inc.

Note: A full copy of the Contract is available on request.

Prepared By: Alex Strudley, Purchasing Agent

Tow Tractor
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VIl. APPROVALS:

>
Eddie E. Benson, Maintenance Manager/ié} /Z/ J._W,-Lx_)

Approved as to fiscal impact: Q\A@Q Q()é/
Angela Aitken, Finance Manager ; i,

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager —_

Tow Tractor

11-14.3
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Attachment A

santacruz METRO

Bid Results for IFB No. 17-13

For Purchase and Delivery of One (1)

Tow Tractor
Opened November 22, 2017 at 2:00 PM

BID RANK | BIDDER AMOUNT BID
1 Technology International $53,415.33
2 NMC-Wollard, Inc. $55,463.56
3 K-Lift Service Co $57,628.30
4 Ground Support Specialist, LLC $61,737.60
5 Kirk’s Automotive, Inc. $64,626.10
6 Toyota Material Handling $65,071.35
7 Aero Specialties $65,389.10

Note: Aero Specialties bid ($59,990 base bid+tax at 9%)
Bidder did not include tax in bid price as instructed in bid forms.

11-14A 1
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Attachment B

CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF QUANTITY ONE (1)
TOW TRACTOR (17-13)

THIS CONTRACT is made effective on January 29, 2018 between the SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN
TRANSIT DISTRICT (“Santa Cruz METRO™), a political subdivision of the State of California, and
Technology International, Inc. (“Contractor”).

1.

RECITALS

1.01 Santa Cruz METRO’s Primary Objective

Santa Cruz METRO is a public entity whose primary objective is providing public transportation and

which has its principal office at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060.

1.02 Santa Cruz METRO’s Need for the Tow Tractor

Santa Cruz METRO requires the purchase of Tow Tractor to be used for standard purposes. In order to

obtain said Tow Tractor, Santa Cruz METRO issued an Invitation for Bids, dated October 23, 2017,
setting forth specifications for such Tow Tractor. The Invitation for Bids is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A.

1.03 Contractor’s Bid Form

Contractor is a supplier of Tow Tractor desired by Santa Cruz METRO and whose principal place of
business is 1349 S. International Pwky, Lake Mary, FL. 32746. Pursuant to the Invitation for Bids

issued by Santa Cruz METRO, Contractor submitted a bid for Provision of said Tow Tractor, which is

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit B.

1.04 Selection of Contractor and Intent of Contract

On November 22, 2017, Santa Cruz METRO selected Contractor as the lowest responsive, responsible

bidder to provide said Tow Tractor. The purpose of this Contract is to set forth the provisions of this
procurement.

1.05 Contractor and Supplier Synonymous
For the purposes of this Contract, the terms “contractor” and “supplier” are synonymous.
DEFINITIONS
2.01 General

The terms (or pronouns in place of them) have the following meaning in the Contract.

2.01.01 ACCEPTANCE DATE - The date on which delivery is deemed to be complete in accordance

with the provisions of the Contract and accepted in writing by Santa Cruz METRO.

2.01.02 CONTRACT - The Contract consists of this document, the attachments incorporated herein in

accordance with Article 2 of Part VI - “Contract for ITEM,” and any written amendments
made in accordance with Article 12.15 of Part IV - “General Conditions of the Contract.”

11-14B.1
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2.01.03 CONTRACTOR - Synonymous with Bidder.
2.01.04 DAYS - Calendar Days.

2.01.05 PROVISION - Any term, agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, or other stipulation in the Contract that defines or otherwise controls, establishes,
or limits the performance required or permitted by either party.

2.01.06 SCOPE OF WORK (OR “WORK?”) - The entire obligation under the Contract, including,
without limitation, all labor, equipment, materials, supplies, transportation, services, and other
work products and expenses, express or implied, in the Contract.

Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor agree as follows:

3. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE LAW

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.01

4.02

Documents Incorporated in This Contract

The documents listed below are attached to this Contract and by reference made a part hereof. This is
an integrated Contract. This writing constitutes the final expression of the parties’ Contract, and it is a
complete and exclusive statement of the provisions of that Contract, except for written amendments, if
any, made after the date of this Contract in accordance with Section 12.15 of the General Conditions to
the Contract.

a) Exhibit A

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’s “Invitation for Bids™ dated October 23, 2017,
including Addendum(s) No(s). 1 dated November 9, 2017.

b) Exhibit B (Bid Form)

Contractor’s Bid Form to Santa Cruz METRO for Quantity One (1) Tow Tractor, signed by
Contractor and dated November 21, 2017.

Conflicts

Where in conflict, the provisions of this writing supersede those of the above-referenced documents,
Exhibits A and B. Where in conflict, the provisions of Exhibit A supersede Exhibit B.

Recitals

The Recitals set forth in Article 1 are part of this Contract.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

General

Contractor shall perform work under this Contract at such times to enable it to meet the time schedules
specified in the Specifications Section of the IFB. The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays
caused by force majeure events described in Section 3 of the General Conditions of the Contract.
Term

The term of this Contract commences on the execution of the Contract and shall remain in force until
the expiration of the Tow Tractor’s Manufacturer’s Standard 2 year/2000 hour warranty period.

11-14B.2
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5. . COMPENSATION

5.02

6.

5.01 Terms of Payment

Following delivery of the Tow Tractor, Santa Cruz METRO shall undertake a 30-calendar-day period
for inspection and testing of the complete unit. Santa Cruz METRO will notify the Contractor in writing
within said thirty (30) calendar days as to whether the Tow Tractor has been accepted.

If Santa Cruz METRO determines that the Tow Tractor or its component parts are not in conformity
with the specification requirements, or that there are defects or deficiencies in the materials and
equipment, Santa Cruz METRO may reject the goods, or may notify the Contractor of such deficiencies
or nonconformity in writing within the aforementioned thirty (30)-day period. The Contractor shall
immediately correct or remedy any and all deficiencies or defects noted by Santa Cruz METRO at no
cost to Santa Cruz METRO. The Contractor shall complete the necessary corrections within fifteen (15)
days of Santa Cruz METRO's notification of deficiencies or nonconformity. At such time as the
Contractor has made all necessary corrections to the satisfaction of Santa Cruz METRO, Santa Cruz
METRO shall issue the Contractor a written notice of final acceptance. In the event Contractor fails to
remedy the deficiencies, Santa Cruz METRO shall have the right to reject the equipment and terminate
the Contract for breach. Alternatively, Santa Cruz METRO may cause the repair to be made by its own
or other forces, whereupon the cost of the repair shall be deducted from sums otherwise due the
Contractor.

Upon written acceptance of the Tow Tractor, Santa Cruz METRO agrees to pay Contractor an amount
not to exceed $53,415.33 as identified in the Bid Form, Exhibit B, for satisfactory completion of all
work under the terms and provisions of this Contract within thirty (30) days thereof. Contractor
understands and agrees that if they exceed the $53,415.33 maximum amount payable under this
Contract, they do so at their own risk.

Invoices

Contractor shall submit invoices with a purchase order number provided by Santa Cruz METRO.

Said invoice records shall be kept up-to-date at all times and shall be available for inspection by Santa
Cruz METRO (or any grantor of Santa Cruz METRO, including, without limitation, any State or
Federal agency providing project funding or reimbursement) at any time for any reason upon demand
for not less than four (4) years after the date of expiration or termination of the Contract. Under penalty
of law, Contractor represents that all amounts billed to Santa Cruz METRO are (1) actually incurred;
(2) reasonable in amount; (3) related to this Contract; and (4) necessary for performance of the services.
No expenses shall be paid by Santa Cruz METRO unless specifically allowed by this Contract.

NOTICES

All notices under this Contract shall be deemed duly given upon delivery, if delivered by hand, or three (3) days
after posting, if sent by registered mail, receipt requested, to a party hereto at the address hereinunder set forth, or to
such other address as a party may designate by notice pursuant hereto.

Santa Cruz METRO

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
110 Vernon Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Attention: CEO/General Manager

11-14B.3
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CONTRACTOR

Technology International, Inc.
1349 South International Pkwy, Suite 2411
Lake Mary, FL 32746

Attention: Michael J. Rosenberg

1 ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

The parties agree that this Contract, agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents to be
entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of a party is delivered by
scanned image as an attachment to electronic mail. Such scanned signature must be treated in all
respects as having the same effect as an original signature. Each party further agrees that this Contract
may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

8. AUTHORITY

Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract and the person signing
this Contract on behalf of each has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Contract.
Each party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees to be bound by
it.

Signed on /?/ 7 /20/?
[/

Santa Cruz METRO —
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Contractor —

TECHNOLOGY INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Michael J. Rosenberg, Business & Operations Manager \\)\_)\A— J ) Q\*(-

\ \

Approved as to Form: } ,\

Julie A. Sherman, General Counsel
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan

Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f i
TO: Board of Directors saviacauz METRO
FROM: Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT TO COASTAL

LANDSCAPING, INC. FOR LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE SERVICES
NOT TO EXCEED $ 186,040

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1) That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute a contract with
Coastal Landscaping, Inc. for Landscaping Maintenance Services in an
amount not to exceed $186,040 for a 3-year period, with options to
extend the contract for a total term of seven years.

That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to execute future
amendments with Coastal Landscaping, Inc. for the options to extend,
increasing the contract total for each option period as required, not to

exceed a total value of $434,094 for the full seven years.

SUMMARY

e The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) has a need for
Landscaping Maintenance Services.

e Aformal request for proposals was conducted to solicit proposals from
qualified firms. Five firms submitted proposals for METRO's review.

e Athree-member evaluation team comprised of METRO staff reviewed and
evaluated the proposals, and is recommending an award to Coastal
Landscaping, Inc.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

METRO requires the services of a licensed and insured landscape maintenance
company to perform landscaping maintenance services at seven METRO sites.
Coastal Landscaping, Inc. is METRO'’s current provider for these services;
however, this contract expired on November 30, 2017, with no further options to
renew.

On October 24, 2017, METRO issued a formal Request for Proposals (RFP) for
Landscaping Maintenance Services. METRO legally advertised and distributed
RFP No. 18-02 to 24 firms, posted notice on its website, and sent email notices
to all GovDelivery subscribers. On November 30, 2017, proposals were received
and opened from five firms. A list of these firms is provided in Attachment A. A

11-15.1
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three-member evaluation team comprised of METRO staff has reviewed and
evaluated the proposals.

The evaluation team used the following criteria as contained in the Request for

Proposals:

Evaluation Criteria Points

Contractor’s Qualifications and Recent Experience 20

Qualifications and Experience of Service Personnel 20

Experience with Government Agencies 10

References 20

Cost Proposal 30
Total Points Possible 100

Staff is recommending the following actions: 1) that the Board of Directors
authorize the CEO to execute a three-year contract on behalf of METRO with
Coastal Landscaping, Inc. for Landscaping Maintenance Services in an amount
not to exceed $186,040; and 2) that the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to
execute two future contract extensions (for two two-year options) with Coastal
Landscaping, Inc., for a total anticipated contract value not to exceed $434,094
and a total term not to exceed seven years.

Contractor will provide all services meeting all METRO'’s specifications and
requirements of the contract. Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager, will serve as
the Contract Administrator and will ensure contract compliance.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

The base value of the contract is $186,040 for the first three years. Out of this
total, $104,040 covers the monthly landscaping maintenance services, and the
remainder, $82,000, is for anticipated special projects. Should both of the two-
year options be exercised, the total seven-year value of the contract is
anticipated to be $434,094.

Funds to support the monthly landscaping maintenance portion of this contract
($104,040) are included in the Facilities Maintenance FY18, FY19 & FY20 Out
Repair - Buildings & Improvements (503351) Operating budgets. The $82,000
of Special Projects will be funded by a combination of FY19 and FY20
Operating funds offset by FTA Section 5339 grant funds as available.The
Department Manager will be responsible for budgeting this expense each fiscal
year. Funding for the special projects is to be identified prior to proceeding.

Contract Award to Coastal Landscaping, Inc.
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V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

e None. METRO does not have in-house staff with the training or the time to
perform these landscaping maintenance services.

VI.  ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: List of Responding Firms
Attachment B: Contract with Coastal Landscaping, Inc.

Note: A full copy of the Contract is available on request.

Prepared By: Joan Jeffries, Administrative Specialist

Contract Award to Coastal Landscaping, Inc.
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Vil. APPROVALS:

Eddie Benson, Maintenance Manager El@r i /5 ;gml

Approved as to fiscal impact: A /Cc. (oo 76\/ Aﬁ

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager M/

Contract Award to Coastal Landscaping, Inc.
11-15.4
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Attachment A

f f santacruz METRO

Responding Firms for RFP No. 18-02

Landscaping Maintenance Services

Received by November 30, 2017 at 5:00 PM

Coastal Landscaping, Inc. Aptos CA
K&D Landscaping, Inc. Watsonville CA
The Landscape Company Capitola CA
New Image Landscape Company Fremont CA
Rodriguez Landscape Service Soquel CA

11-15A.1
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Attachment B

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE SERVICES (18-02)

THIS CONTRACT is made effective on February 1, 2018 between the SANTA CRUZ
METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT (“Santa Cruz METRO?”), a political subdivision of the State of
California, and COASTAL LANDSCAPING, INC. (“Contractor”).

1.

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

RECITALS
Santa Cruz METRO’s Primary Objective

Santa Cruz METRO is a public entity whose primary objective is providing public transportation
and which has its principal office at 110 Vernon Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060.

Santa Cruz METRO’s Need for Landscaping Maintenance Services.

Santa Cruz METRO has the need for Landscaping Maintenance Services. In order to obtain these
services, Santa Cruz METRO issued a Request for Proposals, dated October 24, 2017, setting
forth specifications for such services. The Request for Proposals is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A.

Contractor’s Proposal

Contractor is a firm qualified to provide Landscaping Maintenance Services and whose principal
place of business is 189 Via Novella, Aptos, California 95003. Pursuant to the Request for
Proposals issued by Santa Cruz METRO, Contractor submitted a proposal for Landscaping
Maintenance Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit B

Selection of Contractor and Intent of Contract
On January 10, 2018, Santa Cruz METRO selected Contractor as the offeror whose proposal was

most advantageous to Santa Cruz METRO to provide the Landscaping Maintenance Services
described herein. This Contract is intended to fix the provisions of these services.

Santa Cruz METRO and Contractor agree as follows:

2.

2.01

INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE LAW

Documents Incorporated in this Contract
The documents listed below are attached to this Contract and by reference made a part hereof.

This is an integrated Contract. This writing constitutes the final expression of the parties’
Contract, and it is a complete and exclusive statement of the provisions of that Contract, except

11-15B.1



2.02

2.03

3.01

Attachment B

for written amendments, if any, made after the date of this Contract in accordance with Section
12.15 of the General Conditions to the Contract.

A. Exhibit A

Santa Cruz METRO’s “Request for Proposals” dated October 24, 2017, including
Addendum No. 1, dated 11/7/2017, and Addendum No. 2, dated 11/20/2017.

B. Exhibit B (Contractor’s Proposal)

Contractor’s Proposal to Santa Cruz METRO for Landscaping Maintenance Services, signed
by Contractor and dated November 8, 2017.

Conflicts

Where in conflict, the provisions of this writing supersede those of the above-referenced
documents, Exhibits A and B. Where in conflict, the provisions of Exhibit A supersede
Exhibit B.

Recitals

The Recitals set forth in Article 1 are part of this Contract.

DEFINITIONS

General

The terms below (or pronouns in place of them) have the following meaning in the Contract:

3.01.01

3.01.02

3.01.03

3.01.04

3.01.05

CONTRACT - The Contract consists of this document, the attachments incorporated
herein in accordance with Article 2, and any written amendments made in accordance
with Part 1V, Section 12.15 of the General Conditions to the Contract.

CONTRACTOR - The Contractor selected by Santa Cruz METRO for this project in
accordance with the Request for Proposals issued October 24, 2017.

CONTRACTOR’S STAFF - Employees of Contractor.
DAYS - Calendar days.

OFFEROR - Contractor whose proposal was accepted under the terms and conditions of
the Request for Proposals issued October 24, 2017.

11-15B.2
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5.01

5.02

Attachment B

3.01.06 PROVISION - Any term, agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification,
restriction, reservation, or other stipulation in the Contract that defines or otherwise
controls, establishes, or limits the performance required or permitted by either party.

3.01.07 SCOPE OF WORK (OR “WORK?”) - The entire obligation under the Contract,

including, without limitation, all labor, equipment, materials, supplies, transportation,
services, and other work products and expenses, express or implied, in the Contract.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

Term

The term of this Contract will be for a period not to exceed three (3) years and shall commence
upon the execution of the Contract by Santa Cruz METRO. At the option of Santa Cruz
METRO, this Contract agreement may be renewed for two (2) additional two (2) year terms upon
mutual written consent.

COMPENSATION

Terms of Payment

Santa Cruz METRO shall compensate Contractor in an amount not to exceed the amounts/rates
agreed upon by Santa Cruz METRO. Santa Cruz METRO shall reasonably determine whether
work has been successfully performed for purposes of payment. Compensation shall be made
within thirty (30) days of Santa Cruz METRO’s written approval of Contractor’s written invoice
for said work. Contractor understands and agrees that if they exceed the $186,040 maximum
amount payable under this Contract, they do so at their own risk.

Invoices

Contractor shall submit invoices with a purchase order number provided by Santa Cruz METRO
on a monthly basis. Contractor’s invoices shall include detailed records showing actual time
devoted, work accomplished, date work accomplished, personnel used, and amount billed per
hour. Expenses shall only be billed if allowed under the Contract.

Said invoice records shall be kept up-to-date at all times and shall be available for inspection by
Santa Cruz METRO (or any grantor of Santa Cruz METRO, including, without limitation, any
State or Federal agency providing project funding or reimbursement) at any time for any reason
upon demand for not less than four (4) years after the date of expiration or termination of the
Contract. Under penalty of law, Contractor represents that all amounts billed to Santa Cruz
METRO are (1) actually incurred; (2) reasonable in amount; (3) related to this Contract; and (4)
necessary for performance of the project.

11-15B.3
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NOTICES

All notices under this Contract shall be deemed duly given upon delivery, if delivered by hand, or
three (3) days after posting if sent by registered mail, receipt requested, to a party hereto at the
address hereinunder set forth, or to such other address as a party may designate by notice
pursuant hereto.

Santa Cruz METRO
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
110 Vernon Street

Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Attention: Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

CONTRACTOR

Coastal Landscaping, Inc.
P.O. Box 176
Aptos, CA 95001

Attention: Jeff Powers, CFO
(831) 334-7202
Jeff@CLILandscaping.com

ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

The parties agree that this Contract, agreements ancillary to this Contract, and related documents
to be entered into this Contract will be considered executed when the signature of a party is
delivered by scanned image as an attachment to electronic mail. Such scanned signature must be
treated in all respects as having the same effect as an original signature. Each party further agrees
that this Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which constitute one and
the same instrument.

AUTHORITY
Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Contract and the person
signing this Contract on behalf of each has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into

this Contract. Each party further acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and
agrees to be bound by it.

11-15B.4


mailto:Jeff@CLILandscaping.com

Attachment B

Signed on r Ol Ol8
Santa Cruz METRO -

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN

TRANSIT DISTRICT

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Contractor —

COASTAL LANDSCAPING, INC.

Jeffrey D. Powers, CFO U)XH 2 g CF O
1 -

Approved as to Form: /f 7—-— —

Julie A. Sherman, General Counsel ; /
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santacruz MIETRO

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT

Resolution No.

On the Motion of Director:

Duly Seconded by Director:

The Following Resolution is Adopted:

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE SERVICES OF ARLAN COLWELL AS
BUS OPERATOR FOR THE SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) was formed to
provide public transportation to all of the residents of Santa Cruz County; and,

WHEREAS, the provision of public transportation service requires a competent,
dedicated workforce; and,

WHEREAS, METRO, requiring an employee with expertise and dedication,
appointed Arlan Colwell to serve in the position of Bus Operator; and,

WHEREAS, Arlan Colwell served as a member of the Operations Department of
METRO for the time period of December 19, 2006 to December 19, 2017; and,

WHEREAS, Arlan Colwell provided METRO with dedicated service and
commitment during the time of employment; and,

WHEREAS, Arlan Colwell served METRO with distinction; and,

WHEREAS, the service provided to the residents of Santa Cruz County by Arlan
Colwell resulted in reliable, quality public transportation being available in the most
difficult of times; and,

WHEREAS, during the time of Arlan’s service, METRO improved existing and
built new operating facilities, developed accessible bus stops, improved ridership,
responded to adverse economic conditions; and,

WHEREAS, the quality of life in Santa Cruz County was improved dramatically
as a result of the exemplary service provided by Arlan Colwell.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that upon his retirement as Bus
Operator, the Board of Directors of METRO does hereby commend Arlan Colwell for his
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Resolution No.
Page 2

efforts in advancing public transit service in Santa Cruz County and expresses sincere
appreciation on behalf of itself, the METRO staff and all of the residents of Santa Cruz
County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution will be presented to
Arlan Colwell, and that a copy of this resolution be entered into the official records of the
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26™ Day of January 2018 by the following vote:
AYES: Directors -
NOES: Directors -
ABSTAIN: Directors -

ABSENT: Directors -

Approved:
Jimmy Dutra, Chair

Attest:
Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

Approved as to form:
Julie Sherman, General Counsel

13.2



MMARTIN BERNAL, CITY
MANAGER,
CITY OF SANTA CRUZ

STATE OF DOWNTOWN SANTA CRUZ
INCLUDINGG

- Downtown Plan Updates
- Downtown Development
- Mixed-Use Housing

- Farmers' Market
- Library
- Downtown Streets Team
- Parking Studyy
- Retail Study Update
- Go Santa Cruzz
- Bike Share

14.1
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f j
TO: Board of Directors smmacrz METRO

FROM: Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL
REPORT AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Year to Date Monthly

Financial Report as of September 30, 2017

Il. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

e An analysis of Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’'s (METRO) financial
status is prepared monthly in order to inform the Board of Directors regarding
METRO'’s actual revenues and expenses in relation to the adopted operating
and capital budgets for the fiscal year.

e This staff report is the web-accessible companion document to the attached
PowerPoint presentation titled “Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of
September 30, 2017.”

e Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept and file the attached
report.

II. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Below are the written explanations of the various charts and graphs in the
attached Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of September 30, 2017. The
fiscal year has elapsed 25%.

Slide 1
(Cover) Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of September 30, 2017
Slide 2

FY18 Operating Revenue and Expenses for the Month Ending September 30,
2017

e Operating Revenues for the month are favorable by $266K
e Operating Expenses

e Labor Regular - favorable by $84K

e Labor OT - unfavorable by $96K

e Fringe Benefits — favorable by $214K
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e Non-Personnel - unfavorable by $2K
e Total Operating Expenses — favorable by $200K
e Total Budget to Actual Variance - favorable by $466K
Slide 3
FY18 Operating Revenue and Expenses Year to Date as of September 30, 2017
e Operating Revenues Year to Date are favorable by $254K
e Operating Expenses

e Labor Regular - favorable by $294K

e Labor OT - unfavorable by $265K

e Fringe Benefits - favorable by $495K

e Non-Personnel - favorable by $128K
e Total Operating Expenses —favorable by $653K
Total Budget to Actual Variance - favorable by $907K
Slide 4

FY18 Operating Revenue by Major Funding Source - Year to Date as of
September 30, 2017

e Passenger Fares- actual is $2,565K while budget is $2,726K

e Sales Tax Revenue (including Measure D)- actual is $6,196K while budget is
$5,793K

e TDA- actual and budget are $1,692K
e Other Revenue- actual is $137K while budget is $125K
Slide 5

Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Revenue Variance to Budget Year to Date as of
September 30, 2017

e Passenger Fares variance to budget is unfavorable by $161K primarily due
to:

e FY18 Q1 system-wide ridership decrease of 17.1% (year over year).

e Sales Tax Revenue variance to budget is favorable by $403K due to higher
than anticipated receipts.

e Other Revenue variance to budget is favorable by $11K primarily due to
Advertising and Interest income.

Slide 6
FY18 Operating Expenses by Major Expense Category Year to Date as of
September 30, 2017

YTD Financial Report
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e Labor - Regular- actual is $3,805K while budget is $4,099K

e Labor— OT - actual is $677K while budget is $412K

e Fringe Benefits - actual is $4,840K while budget is $5,335K

e Services - actual is $799K while budget is $886K

e Mobile Materials & Supplies - actual is $731K while budget is $735K
e Other Expenses - actual is $515K while budget is $552K

Slide 7

FY18 Operating Expenses by Major Expense Category Year to Date as of
September 30, 2017

e Labor — Regular variance to budget is favorable by $294K due to:
e Vacant funded positions
e Extended unpaid leaves of absence
e Lower Medical Insurance Premiums
e Lower Workers Comp Insurance Costs

e Labor — OT variance to budget is unfavorable by $265K due to vacant
positions and extended leaves of absence in various departments.

e Fringe Benefits variance to budget is favorable by $495K primarily due to
lower medical and workers comp insurance costs.

e Services variance to budget is favorable $87K primarily due to Prof & Tech
Fees under budget.

e Mobile Materials & Supplies variance to budget is favorable by $4K.

e Other Expenses variance to budget is favorable by $37K primarily due to
Casualty & Liability (Settlement Costs).

Slide 8

FY18 Capital Budget Spending Year to Date (by Funding Source) as of
September 30, 2017

e Total Capital Funding year to date is $753K; FY18 budget is $19.8M
e Cal-OES Prop 1B Transits Security Grant funding (CTSGP) is $216K
e Operating and Capital Reserve funding is $315K
e Federal Capital Grants (FTA) funding is $169K

e State Transits Assistance (STA) — Transfers from Operating Budget)
funding is $31K

e State — PTMISEA (1B) funding is $23K.

YTD Financial Report
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Slide 9

FY18 Capital Budget Spending Year to Date as of September 30, 2017

e Total Capital Projects spending year to date is $753K; FY18 budget is $19.8M
e Construction Related Projects spending is $427K
e Revenue Vehicle Replacements spending is $161K
e Non-Revenue Vehicle Replacements spending is $155K

e Misc. spending is $11K.

Slide 10
(Cover Sheet) - Additional Information

Slide 11

Additional Information for the Month of September 2017

e Unemployment Rate % in Santa Cruz County is 4.7%

e $ Gasoline per Gallon for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area is $3.19

e Monthly Ridership - Without UCSC (Cabrillo, Highway 17 and Fixed Route)
has increased slightly in September 2017.

Slide 12
FY18 Operating Expenses Year to Date as of December 31, 2017: Preliminary
e Operating Expenses
e Labor Regular - favorable by $529K
e Labor OT - unfavorable by $633K
e Fringe Benefits - favorable by $924K
e Non-Personnel - favorable by $726K
e Total Operating Expenses - favorable by $1,546K

Slide 13

(Cover Sheet) — FY18 & FY19 Non-Controllable Budget Risks as of January 9,
2018

Slide 14

FY18 & FY19 Non-Controllable Budget Risks (exceeding $200K)

e SB1 Repeal Risk; New TDA-STA PUC 99313 & 99314; New TDA-STA-SGR
Revenue

YTD Financial Report
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e Operating Budget-TDA-STA-SB1-100% of the SB1 is at risk due to
potential voter repeal — $1,230K and $1,766 at risk, in FY18 and FY19,
respectively.

e Capital Budget-TDA-STA-SB1-SGR-100% of the SB1-SGR is at risk due
to potential voter repeal — $671K at risk, in both FY18 and FY19 (as per
Revised SCO estimate dated 11/3/17).

e Total SB1 Repeal Operating and Capital Budget Risk is $1,901K in FY18
and $2,437K in FY109.

V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

Total Budget to Actual Variances for the month and year to date are favorable by
$466K and $907K, respectively.

Non-Controllable budget risks currently exist that could have a significant impact
to the operating and capital budgets. Staff will have more information about the
potential SB1 voter repeal issue later in the year.

V. ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

e There are no alternatives to consider, as this is an accept and file Year to
Date Monthly Financial Report.

VI. ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of September 30,
2017 Presentation

Prepared By: Kristina Mihaylova, Sr. Financial Analyst

YTD Financial Report
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VIl. APPROVALS:

Approved as to fiscal impact:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

YTD Financial Report
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Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

DATE: January 26, 2018 f j
TO: Board of Directors smmacrz METRO

FROM: Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND FILE THE YEAR TO DATE MONTHLY FINANCIAL
REPORT AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors accept and file the Year to Date Monthly

Financial Report as of October 31, 2017

Il. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

e An analysis of Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District’'s (METRO) financial
status is prepared monthly in order to inform the Board of Directors regarding
METRO'’s actual revenues and expenses in relation to the adopted operating
and capital budgets for the fiscal year.

e This staff report is the web-accessible companion document to the attached
PowerPoint presentation titled “Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of
October 31, 2017.”

e Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept and file the attached
report.

II. DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Below are the written explanations of the various charts and graphs in the
attached Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of October 31, 2017. The
fiscal year has elapsed 33%.

Slide 1
(Cover) Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of October 31, 2017
Slide 2
FY18 Operating Revenue and Expenses for the Month Ending October 31, 2017
e Operating Revenues for the month are favorable by $16K
e Operating Expenses
e Labor Regular - favorable by $21K
e Labor OT - unfavorable by $141K
e Fringe Benefits — favorable by $166K

e Non-Personnel - favorable by $76K

16.1
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e Total Operating Expenses — favorable by $122K
e Total Budget to Actual Variance - favorable by $138K
Slide 3
FY18 Operating Revenue and Expenses Year to Date as of October 31, 2017
e Operating Revenues Year to Date are favorable by $269K
e Operating Expenses

e Labor Regular - favorable by $316K

e Labor OT - unfavorable by $405K

e Fringe Benefits - favorable by $661K

e Non-Personnel - favorable by $204K
e Total Operating Expenses —favorable by $776K
Total Budget to Actual Variance - favorable by $1,045K
Slide 4

FY18 Operating Revenue by Major Funding Source - Year to Date as of October
31, 2017

e Passenger Fares- actual is $3,469K while budget is $3,660K

e Sales Tax Revenue (including Measure D)- actual is $7,814K while budget is
$7,379K

e TDA- actual and budget are $1,692K
e Other Revenue- actual is $191K while budget is $167K
Slide 5

Favorable/ (Unfavorable) Revenue Variance to Budget Year to Date as of
October 31, 2017

e Passenger Fares variance to budget is unfavorable by $191K primarily due
to:

e FY18 Q1 system-wide ridership decrease of 17.1% (year over year).

e Sales Tax Revenue variance to budget is favorable by $436K due to higher
than anticipated receipts.

e Other Revenue variance to budget is favorable by $24K primarily due to
Advertising and Interest income.

Slide 6

FY18 Operating Expenses by Major Expense Category Year to Date as of
October 31, 2017

e Labor - Regular- actual is $5,150K while budget is $5,466K

YTD Financial Report
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2018

Labor — OT - actual is $955K while budget is $550K

Fringe Benefits - actual is $6,452K while budget is $7,113K
Services - actual is $1,019K while budget is $1,177K

Mobile Materials & Supplies - actual is $989K while budget is $980K
Other Expenses - actual is $681K while budget is $736K

Slide 7

FY18 Operating Expenses by Major Expense Category Year to Date as of
October 31, 2017

Labor — Regular variance to budget is favorable by $316K due to:
e Vacant funded positions

e Extended unpaid leaves of absence

e Lower Medical Insurance Premiums

e Lower Workers Comp Insurance Costs

Labor — OT variance to budget is unfavorable by $405K due to vacant
positions and extended leaves of absence in various departments.

Fringe Benefits variance to budget is favorable by $661K primarily due to
lower medical and workers comp insurance costs.

Services variance to budget is favorable $158K primarily due to Prof & Tech
Fees under budget.

Mobile Materials & Supplies variance to budget is unfavorable by $9K.

Other Expenses variance to budget is favorable by $55K primarily due to
Casualty & Liability (Settlement Costs).

Slide 8
FY18 Capital Budget Spending Year to Date (by Funding Source) as of October

31,

2017

Total Capital Funding year to date is $811K; FY18 budget is $19.8M

e Cal-OES Prop 1B Transits Security Grant funding (CTSGP) is $240K
e Operating and Capital Reserve funding is $328K

e Federal Capital Grants (FTA) funding is $201K

e State Transits Assistance (STA) — Transfers from Operating Budget)
funding is $36K

e State — PTMISEA (1B) funding is $6K.

YTD Financial Report
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Slide 9
FY18 Capital Budget Spending Year to Date as of October 31, 2017
e Total Capital Projects spending year to date is $811K; FY18 budget is $19.8M
e Construction Related Projects spending is $443K
e Revenue Vehicle Replacements spending is $180K
e Non-Revenue Vehicle Replacements spending is $175K
e Misc. spending is $11K.
e |T Projects spending is $3K.

Slide 10
(Cover Sheet) - Additional Information

Slide 11

Additional Information for the Month of October 2017

e Unemployment Rate % in Santa Cruz County is 4.4%

e $ Gasoline per Gallon for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area is $3.11

e Monthly Ridership - Without UCSC (Cabrillo, Highway 17 and Fixed Route)
has increased in October 2017.

Slide 12
FY18 Operating Expenses Year to Date as of December 31, 2017: Preliminary
e Operating Expenses
e Labor Regular - favorable by $529K
e Labor OT - unfavorable by $633K
e Fringe Benefits - favorable by $924K
e Non-Personnel - favorable by $726K
e Total Operating Expenses - favorable by $1,546K

Slide 13

(Cover Sheet) — FY18 & FY19 Non-Controllable Budget Risks as of January 9,
2018

Slide 14
FY18 & FY19 Non-Controllable Budget Risks (exceeding $200K)

e SB1 Repeal Risk; New TDA-STA PUC 99313 & 99314; New TDA —STA-SGR
Revenue

YTD Financial Report
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e Operating Budget-TDA-STA-SB1-100% of the SB1 is at risk due to
potential voter repeal — $1,230K and $1,766 at risk, in FY18 and FY19,
respectively.
e Capital Budget-TDA-STA-SB1-SGR-100% of the SB1-SGR is at risk due
to potential voter repeal — $671K at risk, in both FY18 and FY19 (as per
Revised SCO estimate dated 11/3/17).
e Total SB1 Repeal Operating and Capital Budget Risk is $1,901K in FY18
and $2,437K in FY109.
V. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

VI.

Total Budget to Actual Variances for the month and year to date are favorable by
$138K and $1,045K, respectively.

Non-Controllable budget risks currently exist that could have a significant impact
to the operating and capital budgets. Staff will have more information about the
potential SB1 voter repeal issue later in the year.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

e There are no alternatives to consider, as this is an accept and file Year to
Date Monthly Financial Report.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Year to Date Monthly Financial Report as of October 31,
2017 Presentation

Prepared By: Kristina Mihaylova, Sr. Financial Analyst

YTD Financial Report
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VIl. APPROVALS:

Approved as to fiscal impact:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

YTD Financial Report
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DATE:
TO:

FROM

Santa Cruz Metropolitan
Transit District

January 26, 2018 f i
Board of Directors smmacrz METRO

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

SUBJECT. ACCEPTANCE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION

That the Board of Directors formally accept the audited financial

statements and reports prepared by the firm of Brown Armstrong, Certified

Public Accountants, for the year ended June 30, 2017

SUMMARY

The Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report (Attachment A)
prepared by the firm Brown Armstrong, Certified Public Accountants present
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District's (Santa Cruz METRO) financial
position as of June 30, 2017, with a comparison to the financial position as of
June 30, 2016. The auditors have found that Santa Cruz METRO's financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Santa Cruz METRO as of June 30, 2017.

In the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance Over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with the
Statutes, Rules, and Regulations of the California Transportation
Development Act and the Allocation Instructions and Resolutions of the
Transportation Commission (page 55-56), the auditors found nothing that
came to their attention that indicated Santa Cruz METRO failed to comply
with the Statutes, Rules, and Regulations of the California Transportation
Development Act, and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the Santa
Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission during the course of their
audit. Additionally, the auditors tested Public Transportation Modernization,
Improvement, and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) program
receipts and expenses for the year audited.

In the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (pages 57-58), the
auditors identified no findings associated with their testing of major federal
program expenditures in connection with their audit performed under
Government Auditing Standards (GAS) and in accordance with the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

e The Required Communication to the Board of Directors in Accordance
with Professional Standards letter (Attachment B) provides information
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related to the auditors’ responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards as well as observations arising from the audit.

e There were two current year conditions and recommendations detailed in an
Agreed upon Conditions Designed to Increase Efficiency, Internal Controls,
and/or Financial Reporting letter issued by the auditors this year.

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND

Attachment A — Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Independent Auditor’s Report (pages 1-3) documents that the audit was
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. The auditors have found that Santa Cruz METRO'’s
financial statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of
Santa Cruz METRO as of June 30, 2017.

While the basic financial statements and notes (pages 15-44) provide information
about Santa Cruz METRO’s financial position in detail, the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (pages 4-14) presents narrative highlights of the
financial statements, an overview of the agency’s financial activities, and
information that enhances overall financial disclosure. This report is prepared by
Santa Cruz METRO management and staff.

The Statements of Net Position (pages 15-16) present current and noncurrent
assets and liabilities on a full accrual basis. Net position represents the difference
between total assets plus deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
(page 17) present Santa Cruz METRO'’s revenues, expenses and the net impact
these activities had on its net position for the year.

The Statements of Cash Flows (page 18) demonstrate how changes in balance
sheet accounts and income affect cash and cash equivalents.

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements (pages 19-44) are an integral
component of the financial statement report, as they provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
financial statements. The notes describe the nature of Santa Cruz METRO'’s
operations and significant accounting policies, as well as clarify financial
information unique to Santa Cruz METRO.

The Required Supplementary Information section of the report highlights
information that is considered essential for placing the financial statement and
note information in an appropriate context, in accordance with generally accepted

FY17 Financial Audit Report
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accounting principles. The Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and
Related Ratios (page 45) and the Schedule of Contributions (page 46) for Santa
Cruz METRO'’s defined benefit pension plan are required under standards on
accounting and financial reporting for pension plans (GASB 68). The Schedule of
Funding Progress for the net obligation for post-employment medical, dental,
vision and life insurance benefits (OPEB) (page 47) presents multiyear trend
information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits. At this time, Santa Cruz METRO is not prefunding the liability for retiree
medical or other post-employment benefits.

The Statements of Operating Expenses (page 48) are presented as
Supplementary Information, showing the total operating costs that were reported
in the financials in further detail, broken out by natural expense classification.

Attachment B - Required Communication to the Board of Directors in
Accordance with Professional Standards

The Required Communication to the Board of Directors in Accordance with
Professional Standards is a letter from the auditors that serves to communicate
to those charged with governance the scope of audit procedures performed,
significant findings or misstatements, and other information, such as significant
accounting estimates, audit adjustments, any difficulties or disagreements with
management, and other matters that are not communicated in the audited
financial statements.

Attachment C - Agreed Upon Conditions Designed to Increase Efficiency,
Internal Controls, and/or Financial Reporting

The purpose of the Agreed Upon Conditions Designed to Increase Efficiency,
Internal Controls, and/or Financial Reporting communication (AUC letter) from
the auditors is to provide Santa Cruz METRO with recommendations for
strengthening internal controls and operations efficiency with regard to matters
that came to their attention during the course of the audit.

AICPA standards specifically require auditors to inform those charged with
governance of any finding considered to be a material weakness or significant
deficiency in internal control through a written communication, however the items
presented in this AUC letter do not rise to the level of such reportable conditions;
this management letter communication is offered as a “best practices”
recommendation for the consideration of management and staff. The conditions
identified by the auditors are neither material weaknesses nor significant
deficiencies under Government Auditing Standards (“Yellow Book”) or the
Uniform Guidance (“Single Audit”). There were no findings related to Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) or U.S. Department of Transportation (US DOT)
programs.

FY17 Financial Audit Report
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VI.

The AUC letter reflects two current year conditions, each with an accompanying
recommendation by the auditors and a response from Santa Cruz METRO
management. Staff is currently in the process of developing corrective
procedures and actions in order to address the conditions raised in the AUC
letter. Management anticipates reporting back to the Finance, Budget, and Audit
Standing Committee in March, providing an update on the status of the
management letter conditions, and ensuring that progress is made to implement
the auditor’s “best practices” recommendations.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS/IMPACT

e There is no fiscal impact from the Board’s formal acceptance of the financial
statements and audit reports. However, in order to continue to receive
Transportation Development Act (TDA) payments from the Santa Cruz County
Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC), the final audit must be
submitted to the SCCRTC within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year. Santa
Cruz METRO has met this TDA compliance requirement and the SCCRTC
has accepted the FY17 audited financial statements.

e In addition, Santa Cruz METRO is required to submit annual audit reporting
packages to numerous governmental agencies within specified deadlines in
order to meet grant compliance requirements and continue to receive
Federal, State and Local grant awards and funding. Santa Cruz METRO has
timely filed and distributed the FY17 audited financial statements to all
required grantor agencies.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Financial Statements with Independent Auditor’s Report for
the year ended June 30, 2017

Attachment B: Required Communication to the Board of Directors in

Accordance with Professional Standards (letter from Brown
Armstrong, CPAS)

Attachment C: Agreed Upon Conditions Designed to Increase Efficiency,
Internal Controls, and/or Financial Reporting (Management
Letter from Brown Armstrong, CPAS)

Prepared By: Lorraine Bayer, Accountant Il

FY17 Financial Audit Report
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VI. APPROVALS:

Angela Aitken, Finance Manager

Alex Clifford, CEO/General Manager

FY17 Financial Audit Report
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Attachment A

SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016
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BROWN ARMSTRONG

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District
Santa Cruz, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Santa Cruz
Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz METRO), as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Santa Cruz METRO's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to Santa Cruz METRO’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Santa Cruz METROQO's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

17A.4
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Santa Cruz METRO as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the respective
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, and
Schedule of Contributions, as well as the Schedule of Funding Progress for Santa Cruz METRO's Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan, as noted in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements. The
statements of operating expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The statements of operating expenses and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the statements of operating expenses and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18,
2017, on our consideration of Santa Cruz METRO's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Santa Cruz METRO's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

520:071 %MMM?/

Bakersfield, California
December 18, 2017
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SANTA CRUZ METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2016

Introduction

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance of
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz METRO) provides a narrative and analytical
overview of the financial activities of Santa Cruz METRO with selected comparative information for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. Following the MD&A are the basic financial statements of Santa
Cruz METRO together with the notes thereto, which are essential for a full understanding of the data
contained in the financial statements.

Activities and Highlights

Santa Cruz METRO is an independent special-purpose district in 1969 by the legislature of the State of
California for the purpose of providing fixed route bus service to the general public in Santa Cruz County.
Santa Cruz METRO assumed direct operation of federally mandated Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) complementary paratransit (Paracruz) services in November 2004. Prior to 2004, the paratransit
service was delivered under contract. Santa Cruz METRO also operates the Highway 17 (Commuter)
Express bus service to Santa Clara County in cooperation with the Santa Clara Valley Transportation
Authority (VTA), Amtrak, San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA), and the Capitol Corridor Joint
Powers Authority (CCJPA). Overseeing the employees who work in the public interest, the Chief
Executive Officer/General Manager coordinates the operation of Santa Cruz METRO according to the
policy and direction of the governing Board of Directors, composed of eleven directors and two ex-officio
directors as described in Note 1.A.

The Financial Statements

Santa Cruz METRO's basic financial statements are prepared using proprietary fund (enterprise fund)
accounting that uses the same basis of accounting as private-sector business enterprises. Santa Cruz
METRO reports its financial results using one enterprise fund under the accrual basis of accounting,
which records revenue when earned and expenses when incurred.

The Statement of Net Position presents complete information on Santa Cruz METRO’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources, as well as liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
reported as net position. Changes in net position that occur over time may serve as an indicator of Santa
Cruz METRO's financial position.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position reports the operating
revenues and expenses, non-operating revenues and expenses, and capital grant contributions. Federal
capital grant expenses are listed in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and are included in
the current year increase in capital assets.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports the sources and uses of cash for the fiscal year resulting from
operating activities, non-capital financing activities (operating grants and sales tax receipts), capital and
related financing activities (capital acquisitions and disposals), and investing activities (interest and rental
receipts). The net result of these activities, added to the cash balances at the beginning of the year,
reconciles to the cash balances (current plus restricted) at the end of the current fiscal year on the
Statement of Net Position.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral component of the report, as they provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The
notes describe the nature of Santa Cruz METROQ'’s operations and significant accounting policies as well
as clarify financial information unique to Santa Cruz METRO.
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Following the basic financial statements and footnotes is the Required Supplementary Information, which
provides a schedule of changes in the net pension liability, schedule of contributions to Santa Cruz
METRO'’s defined benefit pension plan, and a schedule of funding progress for other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) obligations.

The Statement of Operating Expenses, located in the Supplementary Information section of the financial

statements, reports expenses in greater detail.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Santa Cruz METRO exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the year ended June 30, 2017, by
$20,367,531 (Total Net Position).

Of this amount, $86,071,566 consisted of Net Investment in Capital Assets, which reflects
investment in capital assets used for operational and administrative functions (e.g. facilities,
vehicles, and equipment). Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending.

The remaining balance of Total Net Position represents Unrestricted Net Position, which
decreased to $(65,704,035). The negative Unrestricted Net Position is the result, in part, of
the District incurring increasing pension obligations (Net Pension Liability) that reached
$54,722,128 by June 30, 2017, and increasing retiree medical benefits obligations (OPEB) in
fiscal year 2017 totaling $33,663,105 at year end. These liabilities are required to be
accounted for under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68,
and GASB Statement No. 45. Net Pension Liability represents a future 